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CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for
credit losses of $221,170 and $94,085, respectively
Inventories, net
Prepaid income taxes
Related party receivables
Prepaid expenses
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
Other current assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net
OTHER ASSETS:
Goodwill
Operating lease right of use asset
Intangible assets, net
Other assets, net
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation and benefits

Operating lease liability

Accrued warranty

Other accrued liabilities

Income taxes payable

Refundable customer deposits

Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings

Contingent value rights

Earnout consideration

Current portion of loans payable

Current portion of loans payable - related party

Embedded derivative liability

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Loans payable and related interest

Loans payable and related interest - related party

Deferred income taxes

Operating lease liability

Earnout consideration

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 7)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Series A Convertible preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share;
3,000,000 shares authorized; no and 28,000 shares issued and outstanding, respectively

PINEAPPLE ENERGY INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

September 30 December 31
2024 2023

1,062,323 3,575,283
1,099,763 1,821,060
4,228,470 5,010,818
2,667,880 3,578,668
77,689 —
25,749 46,448
1,759,905 1,313,082
384,020 57,241
376,723 376,048
11,682,522 15,778,648
1,307,007 1,511,878
20,545,850 20,545,850
3,771,749 4,516,102
13,680,208 15,808,333
12,000 12,000
38,009,807 40,882,285
50,999,336 58,172,811
8,248,106 7,677,261
849,664 1,360,148
314,058 394,042
272,041 268,004
1,228,721 867,727
- 5,373
1,841,459 2,112,363
464,970 440,089
1,212,263 1,691,072
2,700,000 2,500,000
2,920,027 1,654,881
4,389,487 3,402,522
484,993 -
24,925,789 22,373,482
6,953,203 8,030,562
2,393,309 2,097,194
41,579 41,579
3,554,992 4,193,205
— 1,000,000
12,943,083 15,362,540
— 28,000



Series C preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share;

35,000 shares authorized; 10,808 and no shares issued and outstanding, respectively 10,808 —
Common stock, par value $0.05 per share; 2,666,667 shares authorized;

940,385 and 13,663 shares issued and outstanding, respectively“) 47,021 683
Additional paid-in capital!) 49,151,849 47,489,517
Accumulated deficit (36,079,214) (27,081,411)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 13,130,464 20,436,789
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) $ 50,999.336 $ 58,172,811

(1) Prior period results have been adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split of the common stock at a ratio of 1-for-50 that became effective October 17, 2024 and the reverse stock split of the common stock at a ratio of 1-for-15 that became effective June 12, 2024.
See Note 1, "Nature of Operations," for further details.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.




Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization expense
Fair value remeasurement of SUNation earnout consideration
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Other (expense) income:
Investment and other income
(Loss) gain on sale of assets
Fair value remeasurement of warrant liability
Fair value remeasurement of embedded derivative liability
Fair value remeasurement of contingent value rights
Interest and other expense
Loss on debt extinguishment
Other (expense) income, net

Net loss before income taxes

Income tax (benefit) expense

Net loss from continuing operations

Net loss from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net loss

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Unrealized (loss) gain on available-for-sale securities
Total other comprehensive (loss) income
Comprehensive loss

Deemed dividend on extinguishment of Convertible Preferred Stock
Deemed dividend on modification of PIPE Warrants
Deemed contribution on exchange of equity instruments

Net loss attributable to common shareholders

Basic net loss per share(!):
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Diluted net loss per share(!):
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

PINEAPPLE ENERGY INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Sep 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
2024 2023 2024 2023

S 14718386 $ 18,288,697 41,487,003 60,190,413
9,482,661 11,256,239 26,653,476 38,014,705

5,235,725 7,032,458 14,833,527 22,175,708

6,133,087 7,150,110 19,321,037 22,444,808

709,375 1,216,698 2,128,125 3,700,095

— 230,000 (800,000) 1,160,000

6,842,462 8,596,808 20,649,162 27,304,903
(1,606,737) (1,564,350) (5,815,635) (5,129,195)

25,410 88,163 98,576 143,452

(6,940) 192,845 (822) 437,116

(1,435,845) — (974,823) —

587,271 — (468,329) —

(14,051) (239,922) 478,809 1,152,273

(811,551) (810,023) (2,312,054) (1,867,576)

(35,657) — (35,657) —

(1,691,363) (768,937) (3,214,300) (134,735)

(3,298,100) (2,333,287) (9,029,935) (5,263,930)

509 (4.234) 38 (1,396)

(3,298,609) (2.329,053) (9,029,973) (5.262,534)

— (33,983) — (1,206,235)

(3,298,609) (2,363,036) (9,029,973) (6,468,769)

— (34,108) — 10,422

— (34.108) — 10,422

S (3,298,609)  $ (2.397,144) (9.029.973)  § (6,458,347
(3,464,426) — (4,215,551) —

(875,737) — (11,447,251) —

4,075,681 — 4,075,681 —

$ (3,563,091) § (2,363,036) (20,617,094) $ (6,468,769)
S 1177 (173.81) (12825) § (395.75)
— (2.54) — (90.71)

$ (11.77) § (176.35) (12825) § (486.46)
S 1177 (173.81) (128.25) (395.75)
— (2.54) — (90.71)

$ 1177 8 (176.35) (12825) $ (486.46)




Weighted Average Basic Shares Outstanding(!) 302,756 13,400 160,751 13,298
‘Weighted Average Dilutive Shares Outstanding(” 302,756 13,400 160,751 13,298

(1) Prior period results have been adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split of the common stock at a ratio of 1-for-50 that became effective October 17, 2024 and the reverse stock split of the common stock at a ratio of 1-for-15 that became effective June 12, 2024.
See Note 1, "Nature of Operations," for further details.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the d financial




For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024

Redeemable Convertible

Series B
Preferred Stock

PINEAPPLE ENERGY INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Common Stock

Shares

Shares)

Amount()

Additional
Paid-in

Capital®¥

Total

BALANCE AT DECEMBER'
31,2023

—$

13,663

683 %

47,489,517

20,436,789

Net loss

Issuance of common stock
under Employee Stock
Purchase Plan

Issuance of common stock
under Equity Incentive Plan
Issuance of common stock
under registered direct
offering, net of issuance
costs

Issuance of Series B
Preferred Stock
Cancellation of Series B
Preferred Stock

Issuance of common stock
under PIPE Warrant
exercise

Reclassification of Series A
Preferred Stock to
temporary equity

Preferred Stock
Shares Amount
—3
28,000 30,968,875

(O]

(O

153

16,545

827

918,808

14

323,963

(30,940,875)

(9,029,973)
9,772

918,988
15

O

324,790

(30,968,875)



Deemed dividend on
extinguishment of
Convertible Preferred
Stock

Reclassification of PIPE
Warrants to liabilities
Conversion of Redeemable
Convertible Preferred
Stock to Common Stock
Conversion of Series A
Convertible Preferred
Stock to Common Stock
Reclassification of
temporary equity to Series
A Preferred Stock
Reclassification of PIPE
Warrants to equity
Exchange of Series A
Preferred Stock and PIPE
Warrants to Series C
Preferred Stock

Issuance costs on exchange
of Series A Preferred Stock
and PIPE Warrants to
Series C Preferred Stock
Conversion of Series C
Preferred Stock to
Common Stock

Cash in lieu payment on
fractional shares under
reverse stock split

(13,485)

(14,515)

751,125

(15,277,055)

(16,442,945)

(1,490)

14,515

(13,025)

(1,490)

14,515

(13,025)

28,041

(17,233)

28,041

(17,233)

126,098

14,195

765,912

(14)

6,305

710

38,297

()

(751,125)

(10,592,220)

15,270,750

780

16,428,430

11,242,257

(15,016)

(156,524)

(21,064)

(1,131)

(751,125)

(10,592,220)

15,277,055

16,442,945

11,242,257

(156,524)

(1,132)




Share based compensation

(102)

)

(16,199)
(38,263)

32,170

(16,199)
— (6,098)

Other share

BALANCE AT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

10,808 §

10,808

940,385

47,0218

49,151,849 §

(36,079,214)$

—S 13,130,464

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024

Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock

Series A
Preferred Stock

Series B
Preferred Stock

Series C
Preferred Stock

Common Stock

BALANCE AT JUNE 30,
2024

Shares

14,515 §

Amount

16,442,945

Shares

—3

Amount

Shares

18

Shares

Amount

s -

Shares")
144,865

Amount)

Additional
Paid-in

Capital®

Accumulated Other

Deficit

P!
Income Total

7,244 8

21,875,678 §

(32,780,605)$

—3 (10,897,682)

Net loss

Cancellation of Series B
Preferred Stock

Issuance of common stock
under PIPE Warrant
exercise

Conversion of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock
to Common Stock
Reclassification of
temporary equity to Series
A Preferred Stock
Reclassification of PIPE
Warrants to equity
Exchange of Series A
Preferred Stock and PIPE
Warrants to Series C
Preferred Stock, net of
issuance costs

(14,515)

(16,442,945)

(1,490)

14,515

(13,025)

(1,490)

14,515

(13,025)

()

()

28,041 28,041

8

15,413

14,195

770

710

(770)

780

16,428,430

11,242,257

(15,016)

(3,298,609)

— (3,298,609)
@

— 16,442,945

— 11,242,257




Issuance costs on exchange

of Series A Preferred Stock

and PIPE Warrants to Series

C Preferred Stock —
Conversion of Series C

Preferred Stock to Common

Stock —
Share based i =

(156,524)

(201,922)

BALANCE AT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 —s

(36,079.214)8

13,130,464

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023

Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock

Shares Amount

Accumulated
Deficit

Total

BALANCE AT DECEMBER
31,2022 — 8 —

(19,089,134)$

27,222,292

Net loss

Issuance of common stock

under Employee Stock

Purchase Plan — =
Issuance of common stock

under Equity Incentive Plan — —
Gain on extinguishment of

related party debt — —
Share based compensation — —
Other share retirements — —
Other ive income — —

(6,468,769)

108,196

(6,468,769)

125,398

36,291
966,825
(31,186)

10,422

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER
30,2023 — 3 =

= = (156,524)
765,912 38,297 (21,064)
- — (201,922)
940,385 S 47,0218 49,151,849 $
Additional
Common Stock Paid-in
Shares) Amount® CapitalV
13221 § 661 $ 46,293,187 $
113 6 125,392
283 14 (14)
= — 36,291
— — 966,825
(40) @) (139,380)
13,577 § 679 § 47,282,301 §

(25,449,707)$

21,861,273

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2023



Redeemable Convertible Series A Convertible Series B Series C Additional Other
Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares(V Amount() Capital(l) Deficit Income (Loss) Total

BALANCE AT JUNE 30,

2023 — 3 = 28,000 § 28,000 —3 —3 13378 § 670 § 47,047,939 § (23,181,248)g 34,108 § 23,929,469
Net loss — — — — — — — — — (2,363,036) — (2,363,036)
Issuance of common stock
under Equity Incentive Plan — — — — — — 233 11 ary — — —
Share based compensation — — — — — — — — 353,843 — — 353,843
Other share retirements = = = — = = (34) @ (119,470) 94577 = (24.895)
Other ive loss — — — — — — — — — — (34,108) (34,108)

BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER

30,2023 — 3 — 28,000 $ 28,000 —$ —$ 13,577 § 679 % 47,282,301 § (25,449,707)$ —93 21,861,273

(1) Prior period results have been adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split of the common stock at a ratio of 1-for-50 that became effective October 17, 2024 and the reverse stock split of the common stock at a ratio of 1-for-15 that became effective June 12, 2024.
See Note 1, "Nature of Operations," for further details.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
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PINEAPPLE ENERGY INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended September 30
2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (9,029,973) (6,468,769)
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of tax — (1,206,235)
Net loss from continuing operations (9,029,973) (5,262,534)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,373,312 4,002,939
Share based compensation (16,199) 966,825
Fair value remeasurement of earnout consideration (800,000) 1,160,000
Fair value remeasurement of warrant liability 974,823 —
Fair value remeasurement of embedded derivative liability 468,329 —
Fair value remeasurement of contingent value rights (478,809) (1,152,273)
Loss on extinguishment of debt 35,657 —
Loss (gain) on sale of assets 822 (437,116)
Loss on lease termination 215,415 —
Interest and accretion expense 2,312,054 1,867,576
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable 803,047 (112,868)
Inventories 893,281 1,427,729
Income taxes (83,062) (29,081)
Other assets, net (809,709) 2,198,423
Accounts payable 570,844 (510,422)
Accrued compensation and benefits (510,484) 84,421
Customer deposits (270,905) (921,228)
Other accrued liabilities 236,089 (3,095,746)
Accrued interest (1,278,378) (716,188)
Net cash used in operating activities (4,393,846) (529,543)
Net cash used in operating activities - discontinued operations — (295,571)
Net cash used in operating activities (4,393,846) (825,114)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures (29,749) (614,435)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 6,118 450
Proceeds from the sale of investments — 2,869,584
Proceeds from earnout consideration on sale of assets = 250,000
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (23,631) 2,505,599
Net cash provided by investing activities - discontinued operations — 1,102,935
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (23,631) 3,608,534
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from loans payable 1,604,000 7,814,844
Payments against loans payable (1,161,654) (6,970,811)
Payments related to debt issuance costs (24,150) (348,065)
Payments related to equity issuance costs (237,536) -
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock under registered direct offering 1,000,000 —
Proceeds from the issuance of Series B preferred stock 15 —
Payments for contingent value rights distributions — (3,036,676)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of shares withheld 9,775 125,398
Cash in lieu payment on fractional shares under reverse stock split (1,132) —
Purchase of common stock (6,098) (31,186)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,183,220 (2,446,496)




NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH AT END OF PERIOD

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Income taxes paid
Interest paid

NONCASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Gain on extinguishment of related party debt
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Deemed dividend on Convertible Preferred Stock and PIPE Warrants
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock to common stock
Operating right of use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

(3,234,257) 336,924
5,396,343 5,256,478
2,162,086 5,593,402

83,100 28,672
1,216,577 688,954
= 36,291
(35,657) —
11,587,121 —
15,277,055 —
— 753,972




PINEAPPLE ENERGY INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Description of Business

Pineapple Energy Inc. (“PEGY”, “Pineapple”, “we”, “our”, “us” or the “Company”) was originally organized as a Minnesota corporation in 1969. On March 28, 2022, the Company completed its previously announced merger transaction with
Pineapple Energy LLC (“Pineapple Energy”) in accordance with the terms of that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger dated March 1, 2021, as amended by an Amendment No. 1 to Merger Agreement dated December 16, 2021 (collectively
the “Merger Agreement”), by and among the Company, Helios Merger Co., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger Sub™), Pineapple Energy LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Lake
Street Solar LLC as the Members® Representative, and Randall D. Sampson as the Shareholders’ Representative, pursuant to which Merger Sub merged with and into Pineapple Energy, with Pineapple Energy surviving the merger as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”). Following the closing of the Merger (the “Closing”) the Company changed its name to Pineapple Holdings, Inc. and commenced doing business using the Pineapple name, and subsequently,
on April 13, 2022, changed its name to Pineapple Energy Inc.

Pmcapplc s vision is to power the energy transition through grass-roots growth of solar electricity paired with battery storage. The Company is a domestic operator and consolidator of residential and commercial solar, battery storage, and grid
services solutions. Our strategy is focused on acquiring, integrating, and growing leading local and regional solar, storage, and energy services companies nationwide.

Our current business units, Hawaii Energy Connection, LLC (“HEC”), and New York-based subsidiaries, the SUNation entities (collectively, “SUNation”). are engaged in the design, installation, and maintenance of solar energy systems
across residential, commercldl and municipal sectors. Our team specializes in providing tailored solar solutions that meet the specific energy needs of each client, ensuring both efficiency and sustdmdbllny In addition to our core solar
services, we also offer energy storage systems to optimize energy use and increase reliability. Our New York business unit further integrates a broader range of services, including residential roofing solutions, to ensure seamless solar
installations and long-term durability. Additionally, we provide community solar services that allow groups of individuals, businesses, or organizations to share the benefits of a single solar array, making renewable energy accessible to more
people in the community.

On June 30, 2023, the Company divested its legacy operations and operating assets through the sale of substantially all of the assets of its JDL Technologies, Inc. (“JDL”) and Ecessa Corporation (“Ecessa”) businesses. See Note 5,
Discontinued Operations. As a result, unless otherwise noted, all information in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q related to the JDL and Ecessa businesses are discussed and presented as discontinued operations and the Company reports its
remaining business operations as continuing operations.

On October 10, 2024, the Company filed a definitive proxy statement on Form DEF 14A with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) related to a special meeting of its shareholders seeking shareholder approval to redomesticate
the Company from the State of Minnesota to the State of Delaware, and to change the name of the Company to SUNation Energy, Inc. The special meeting of shareholders was held on November 4, 2024, and, as disclosed on the Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on November 8, 2024, approval to redomesticate the Company to the State of Delaware and to change the Company’s name was approved by the shareholders and adopted by the board of directors. We will publicly
disclose the completion of the foregoing matters at such time as they have been effectuated.

13



Reverse Stock Splits
June 2024 Reverse Stock Split

On January 3, 2024, the Company’s shareholders approved a reverse stock split of the Company’s common stock at a ratio within a range of 1-for-2 and 1-for-15 and granted the Company’s board of directors the discretion to determine the
timing and ratio of the split within such range.

On May 28, 2024, the Company’s board of directors determined to effect the reverse stock split of the common stock at a 1-for-15 ratio (the “June Reverse Stock Split”) and approved an amendment (“June Reverse Stock Split Amendment”)
to the Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company to effect the June Reverse Stock Split.

Effective June 12, 2024, the Company amended its Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to implement the June Reverse Stock Split. The Company's common stock began trading on a split-adjusted basis when the market
opened on June 12, 2024 (the "June Effective Date").

As a result of the June Reverse Stock Split, at 12:01 a.m. Central Time on the June Effective Date, every 15 shares of common stock then issued and outstanding automatically were combined into one share of common stock, with no change
in par value per share. No fractional shares were outstanding following the June Reverse Stock Split, and any fractional shares that would have resulted from the June Reverse Stock Split were settled in cash. The number of shares of common
stock outstanding was reduced from 108,546,773 to 7,235,731, with 720.901 fractional shares paid out in cash totaling $1,132. The total number of shares authorized for issuance was reduced to 7,500,000 in proportion to the June Reverse
Stock Split ratio.

October 2024 Reverse Stock Split

On July 19, 2024, the Company’s shareholders approved a reverse stock split of the Company’s common stock at a ratio within a range of 1-for-2 and 1-for-200 and granted the Company’s board of directors the discretion to determine the
timing and ratio of the split within such range. Additionally, the shareholders also approved an increase in authorized shares to 133,333,333 shares.

On October 1, 2024, the Company’s board of directors determined to effect the reverse stock split of the common stock at a 1-for-50 ratio (the “October Reverse Stock Split”) and approved an amendment (“October Reverse Stock Split
Amendment”) to the Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company to effect the October Reverse Stock Split.

Effective October 17, 2024, the Company amended its Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to implement the October Reverse Stock Split. The Company's common stock began trading on a split-adjusted basis when the
market opened on October 17, 2024 (the "October Effective Date").

As aresult of the October Reverse Stock Split, at 12:01 a.m. Central Time on the October Effective Date, every 50 shares of common stock then issued and outstanding automatically were combined into one share of common stock, with no
change in par value per share. No fractional shares were outstanding following the Reverse Stock Split, and any fractional shares that would have resulted from the October Reverse Stock Split were settled in cash. The number of shares of
common stock outstanding was reduced from 67,260,696 to 1,344,841, with 372.92 fractional shares payable in cash totaling $1,891. The total number of shares authorized for issuance was reduced from 133,333,333 to 2,666,667 in
proportion to the October Reverse Stock Split ratio.

Effective as of the same time as the June 2024 Reverse Stock Split and October 2024 Reverse Stock Split (collectively known as the “Reverse Stock Splits”), the number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the Company's
equity compensation plans were automatically reduced in proportion to the Reverse Stock Splits ratio. Upon effectiveness, the Reverse Stock Splits also resulted in reductions in the number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise

or vesting of equity awards in proportion to the Reverse Stock Splits ratios and caused a proportionate increase in exercise price or share-based performance criteria, if any, applicable to such awards.
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The effects of the Reverse Stock Splits have been reflected in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for all periods presented.

Impact of the Reverse Stock Splits

The impact of the Reverse Stock Splits was applied retroactively for all periods presented in accordance with applicable guidance. Therefore, prior period amounts are different than those previously reported.

The following table illustrates changes in common stock (in number of shares and dollar amount) and additional paid-in-capital, as previously reported prior to, and as adjusted subsequent to, the impact of the Reverse Stock Splits
retroactively adjusted for the periods presented:

Common Stock shares
Common Stock amount
Additional Paid-in-Capital

Common Stock shares
Common Stock amount
Additional Paid-in-Capital

Common Stock shares
Common Stock amount
Additional Paid-in-Capital

» o

»

»n o

p 30,2023
Impact of Reverse Stock
As Previously Reported Split As Adjusted
10,182,723 (10,169,146) 13,577
509,136 $ ( $ 679
46,773,844 $ 508,457 $ 47,282,301
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2024
Impact of Reverse Stock Impact of Reverse Stock
As Previously Reported Split As Adjusted As Previously Reported plit As Adjusted
10,033,831 (10,020,453) 13378 7243258 (7,098,393) 144,865
501,692 $ (501,022) $ 670 N 362,163 N (354919) S 7,244
46,546,917 § 501,022 $ 47,047,939 § 21,520,759  § 354919 § 21,875,678
D 31,2022 December 31, 2023
Impact of Reverse Stock Impact of Reverse Stock
As Previously Reported Split As Adjusted As Previously Reported Split As Adjusted
9,915,586 (9.902,365) 13,221 10,246,605 (10,232,942) 13,663
495,779 $ (495,118)  $ 661 $ 512,330 $ (511,647)  $ 683
45,798,069 $ 495,118 $ 46,293,187 $ 46,977,870 $ 511,647 $ 47,489,517

The following table illustrates changes in loss per share and weighted average shares outstanding, as previously reported prior to, and as adjusted subsequent to, the impact of the Reverse Stock Splits retroactively adjusted for the periods

presented:

Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and diluted
Loss per share from continuing operations - basic and diluted
Loss per share from discontinued operations - basic and diluted

Three Months Ended

30,2023

As Previously Reported

10,050,015
023) S
001) S

Impact of Reverse Stock Split

(10,036,615)
(17358)
253) $

As Adjusted
13,400
(173.81)
(2.54)



Nine Months Ended Sep 30, 2023

As Previously Reported Impact of Reverse Stock Split As Adjusted
‘Weighted average shares outstanding - basic and diluted 9,973,311 (9,960,013) 13,298
Loss per share from continuing operations - basic and diluted S 0.53) § (39522) $ (395.75)
Loss per share from discontinued operations - basic and diluted $ 0.12) $ (90.59) $ (90.71)

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned operating subsidiaries. Any reference in these notes to applicable guidance is meant to refer to the authoritative GAAP as found in the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) and Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”).

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted. In the opinion of management, the accompanying condensed
consolidated financial statements include all adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of the results for the interim periods presented. The condensed consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited financial statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2023 included on the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on April 1, 2024. The accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2023 has been derived from the audited balance sheet at December 31, 2023 contained in the above-referenced
Form 10-K. Results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations for a full year.

Registered Direct Offering

On February 5, 2024, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional investors for the sale by the Company of 3,604 shares (2,702,703 prior to the Reverse Stock Splits) of the Company’s common stock in
a registered direct offering. The purchasers in this offering purchased, and the Company sold, the shares at a purchase price per share of $277.50 ($0.37 prior to the Reverse Stock Splits). The sale closed on February 7, 2024 for aggregate
gross proceeds of $1.0 million, before deducting the placement agent fees and related offering expenses.

Principles of Consolidation

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company uses estimates based on the best information available in recording transactions and balances resulting from operations.
Actual results could materially differ from those estimates. The Company’s estimates consist principally of allowances for credit losses, revenue recognition on commercial projects based on percentage of completion, asset impairment
evaluations, accruals for compensation plans, lower of cost or market inventory adjustments, fair value measurements (warrant liabilities, contingent value rights, contingent consideration, and debt instruments, including embedded derivative

liabilities), provisions for income taxes and deferred taxes, depreciable lives of fixed assets, and amortizable lives of intangible assets.
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Cash, Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. The Company may invest in
short-term money market funds that are not considered to be bank deposits and are not insured or guaranteed by the federal deposit insurance company (“FDIC”) or other government agency. These money market funds seek to preserve the
value of the investment at $1.00 per share; however, it is possible to lose money investing in these funds. Total cash equivalents invested in short-term money market funds was $1,240,882 and $1,799,357 as of September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively. The $1.1 million of restricted cash and cash equivalents on the balance sheet as of September 30, 2024 are funds that can only be used to support the legacy CSI business, and will be distributed to holders of
the Company’s contingent value rights (“CVRs”) and cannot be used to support the working capital needs of the Pineapple Energy business.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable are recorded at their net realizable value and are not collateralized. Accounts receivable include amounts earned less payments received and allowances for credit losses. Management continually monitors and adjusts its
allowances associated with the Company’s receivables to address any credit risks associated with the accounts receivable and periodically writes off receivables when collection is not considered probable. The Company does not charge
interest on past due accounts. When uncertainty exists as to the collection of receivables, the Company records an allowance for credit losses and a corresponding charge to credit loss expense.

Inventories, Net

Inventories, which consist primarily of materials and supplies used in the installation of solar systems, are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, with costs computed on a weighted average cost basis. The Company periodically
reviews its inventories for excess and obsolete items and adjusts carrying costs to estimated net realizable values when they are determined to be less than cost. The inventory reserve was $221,170 and $126,990 at September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations and additions or improvements are capitalized. Items of property sold, retired or
otherwise disposed of are removed from the asset and accumulated depreciation accounts and any gains or losses on disposal are reflected in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, net

Goodwill represents the amount by which the purchase prices (including liabilities assumed) of acquired businesses exceed the estimated fair value of the net tangible assets and separately identifiable intangible assets of these businesses.
Definite lived intangible assets, consisting primarily of trade names and technology, are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested at least annually for impairment. The
Company reassesses the value of our reporting units and related goodwill balances annually on October 1 and at other times if events have occurred or circumstances exist that indicate the carrying amount of goodwill may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets and Intangible Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets and definite lived intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be fully recoverable. If indicators of
impairment exist, management identifies the asset group that includes the potentially impaired long-lived asset, at the lowest level at which there are separate, identifiable cash flows. If the fair value, determined as the total of the expected

undiscounted future net cash flows for the asset group is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference between the fair value and carrying amount of the asset.
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Mezzanine Equity

The Company has issued various financial instruments, including preferred stock. Instruments containing redemption rights that are either within the control of the holder or subject to redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not
solely within the Company’s control are classified as redeemable or mezzanine equity. The purpose of this classification is to convey that such a security may not be permanently part of equity and could result in a demand for cash, securities
or other assets of the entity in the future. See Note 10, Convertible Preferred Stock, for further discussion regarding the reclassification of the Company’s Convertible Preferred Stock from permanent equity to mezzanine equity during the first
quarter of 2024 and the reclassification from mezzanine equity to permanent equity in the third quarter of 2024.

Warrants

The Company accounts for warrants as either equity-classified or liability-classified instruments based on an assessment of the warrant’s specific terms and applicable authoritative guidance, ASC 480 “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity”
and ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging.” Management’s assessment considers whether the warrants are freestanding financial instruments pursuant to ASC 480, whether they meet the definition of a liability pursuant to ASC 480, and
whether the warrants meet all of the requirements for equity classification under ASC 815. See Note 10, Equity, for further discussion regarding the reclassification of the Company’s PIPE Warrants from equity to liabilities during the first
quarter of 2024 and the reclassification from liabilities to equity in the third quarter of 2024.

For issued or modified warrants that do not meet all the criteria for equity classification, such warrants are required to be recorded as a liability initially at their fair value on the date of issuance, and subsequently remeasured to fair value on
cach balance sheet date thereafter. Changes in the estimated fair value of liability-classified warrants are recognized in other income (expense) in the condensed consolidated statements of operations in the period of change.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when there is a transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The
Company sells solar power systems under construction and development agreements to residential and commercial customers. The completed system is sold as a single performance obligation. For residential contracts, revenue is recognized
at the point-in-time when the systems are placed into service. Any advance payments received in the form of customer deposits are recorded as contract liabilities.

Commercial contracts are generally completed within three to twelve months from commencement of construction. Construction on large projects may be completed within eighteen to twenty-four months, depending on the size and location
of the project. Revenues from commercial contracts are recognized under a percentage of completion method, measured by the percentage of hours incurred to date against estimated total hours budgeted for each contract. Because of inherent
uncertainties in estimating costs, it is at least reasonably possible that the estimates used will change within the near future. Contract costs include all direct material, labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance, such as
indirect labor and other supplies. Selling, general and administrative costs are charged to expense as incurred. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. Changes in
job performance, job conditions and estimated profitability may result in revisions to costs and revenues which are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. Changes in estimated job profitability resulting from job
performance, job conditions, contract penalty provisions, claims, change orders, and settlements, are accounted for as changes in estimates in the current period.

See Note 3, Revenue Recognition, for further discussion regarding revenue recognition.

Gross Excise Tax

The State of Hawaii imposes a gross receipts tax on all business operations done in Hawaii. The Company records the tax revenue and expense on a gross basis.
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists of direct and indirect material and labor costs for solar energy system installations as well as warranty costs, permitting fees, financing fees and overhead, including costs related to procurement, warehousing and
inventory management.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based compensation awards on a fair value basis. The estimated grant date fair value of each stock-based award is recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of operations over the requisite service
period (generally the vesting period). The Company recognizes forfeitures as they occur.

Warranty

SUNation offers product warranties for various periods against defects in material or installation workmanship. The manufacturers of the solar panels and the inverters provide a warranty period of generally 25 years and 10 years,
respectively. SUNation will assist its customers in the event that the manufacturers' warranty needs to be used to replace a defective solar panel or inverter. SUNation provides for warranty up to the lifetime of the system on the installation of
a system and all equipment and incidental supplies other than solar panels and inverters that are recovered under the manufacturers' warranty. SUNation provides extended workmanship warranties to the customer for up to 25 years for the
service of inverters, which is reimbursed by the manufacturer.

The Company estimates its warranty obligations upon installation, an expense included in cost of sales, based on management’s best estimate of the probable cost to be incurred in honoring its warranty commitment.
Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is available and evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision-making group, in deciding the method to allocate
resources and assess performance. Our chief operating decision maker is comprised of our Interim Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Operating Officer. Based on the financial information presented to and reviewed
by our chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance, we have determined we have two operating segments, but meet the aggregation criteria in order to aggregate into one reportable
segment.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss attributable to common shareholders per common share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted net loss attributable to common shareholders per common share
adjusts for the dilutive effect of potential common shares outstanding. The Company had $264,482 and $11,587,121 in deemed dividends during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively, which decreases the
numerator in the net loss per share calculation. The Company’s only potential additional common shares outstanding are common shares that would result from the conversion of the convertible preferred shares, warrants, convertible debt and
shares associated with the long-term incentive compensation plans, which resulted in no dilutive effect for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023. The Company
calculates the dilutive effect of outstanding warrants and unvested shares using the treasury stock method and the dilutive effect of outstanding preferred shares and convertible debt using the if-converted method. There were no options or
deferred stock awards excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because there were no outstanding options or deferred stock awards as of both September 30, 2024 and 2023. Warrants totaling 0 and 6,902 and restricted stock
units totaling 357 and 1,128 would have been excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, even if there had not been a net loss in those periods, because the
exercise price was greater than the average market price of common stock during the period.
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Accounting Standards Issued

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, “Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures,” which expands disclosures about a public entity’s reportable segments and requires more enhanced
information about a reportable segment’s expenses, interim segment profit or loss, and how a public entity’s chief operating decision maker uses reported segment profit or loss information in assessing segment performance and allocating

resources. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating this ASU
and the impact it may have on its consolidated financial statements.

In October 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-06, “Disclosure Improvements: Codification Amendments in Response to the SEC’s Disclosure Update and Simplification Initiative,” which is intended to clarify or improve disclosure and
presentation requirements of a variety of topics. Many of the amendments will allow users to more easily compare entities subject to the SEC’s existing disclosures with those entities that were not previously subject to the requirements and
align the requirements in the FASB accounting standard codification with the SEC’s regulations. The amendments in ASU 2023-06 will become effective on the date the related disclosures are removed from Regulation S-X or Regulation S-K
by the SEC, and will no longer be effective if the SEC has not removed the applicable disclosure requirement by June 30, 2027. Early adoption is prohibited. The Company is currently evaluating this ASU and the impact it may have on its
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures,” which expands disclosures in an entity’s income tax rate reconciliation table and regarding cash taxes paid both in
the U.S. and foreign jurisdictions. This ASU is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating this ASU and the impact it may have on its consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, “Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income - Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220-40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses”, which requires disclosure
in the notes to the financial statements of specified information about certain costs and expenses. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2026, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2027. Early adoption is permitted. The amendments should be applied either prospectively to financial statements issued for reporting periods after the effective date of this ASU or retrospectively to any or all prior periods
presented in the financial statements. The Company is currently evaluating this ASU and the impact it may have on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION

Disaggregation of revenue

Revenues are recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to our customers, in an amount that best reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

The following table disaggregates revenue based on type:

Revenue by Type

Three Months Ended 30 Nine Months Ended Septem| 30
2024 2023 2024 2023
Residential contracts $ 10,600,999 $ 15,300,411 $ 34,501,450 $ 48,635,741
Commercial contracts 3,618,023 2,201,888 5,107,418 8,789,930
Service revenue 499,364 764,063 1,878,135 2,429,433
Software revenue — 22,335 — 323815
Other = — — 11,494
$ 14,718,386 $ 18,288,697 $ 41,487,003 $ 60,190,413
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The following table disaggregates revenue based on the timing of satisfaction of the performance obligations:

Three Months Ended 30 Nine Months Ended September 30
2024 2023 2024 2023
Performance obligations satisfied at a point in time $ 11,100,363 $ 16,086,809 $ 36,379,585 $ 51,400,483
Performance obligations satisfied over time 3,618,023 2,201,888 5,107,418 8,789,930
$ 14,718,386 $ 18,288,697 $ 41,487,003 $ 60,190,413

Contract Balances

Contract assets represent costs and earnings in excess of amounts billed and direct costs, including commissions, financing and permitting fees paid prior to recording revenue. Contract liabilities represent amounts billed to clients in excess of

revenue recognized to date and billings in excess of costs and earnings. Contract assets were $384,020 and $57,241 at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. Contract liabilities were $2,306,429 and $2,552,452 at

September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. Due to the shorter-term nature of our contracts, the balances within contract assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2023 has been recognized within cash and revenue, respectively,

during the nine months ended September 30, 2024.

NOTE 4 - CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS

Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are as follows:

Billings to date $

Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts
Estimated earnings

Cost plus estimated earnings

Billings in excess of costs plus esti d earnings on leted contracts $

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are as follows:

Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts $
Estimated earnings

Total costs and estimated earnings
Billings to date

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts $

30,2024 December 31, 2023
2,302,747 2,131,579
840,716 1,208,444
997,061 483,046
1,837,777 1,691,490
464,970 440,089
September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
1,162,957 119,782
1,108,077 396,174
2,271,034 515,956
1,887,014 458,715
384,020 57.241

NOTE 5 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On June 30, 2023, the Company sold substantially all of the assets of its legacy non-core subsidiaries, JDL and Ecessa, to TheIPGuys.net LLC doing business as OneNet Global for total net proceeds of $1,231,616. The Company received net
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initial proceeds of $1,106,616, consisting of $1,175,000 in initial consideration less $68,384 in adjustments. An additional $125,000 in consideration is held in escrow for potential indemnification claims that may arise under the asset
purchase agreement. The amount in escrow represented a consideration receivable that is included in other current assets within the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2024, as it was considered to be probable that the
amount will be received in full at the conclusion of the escrow period. The amount of escrow proceeds that will be received will depend on whether any indemnification obligations arise under the asset purchase agreement and the receivable
will be monitored for potential impairment. There were no indemnification obligations identified and the escrow funds will be released in the fourth quarter of 2024. The Company recorded a loss on sale of $1,190,002 during the second
quarter of 2023. The presentation of discontinued operations with respect to this transaction has been retrospectively applied to all prior periods presented.

The financial results of the discontinued operations are as follows:

Three Months Ended Sep 30 Nine Months Ended Sep 30
2024 2023 2024 2023
Sales $ — $ — $ = $ 3,414,810
Cost of sales — — — 2,444,014
Selling, general and administrative expenses — 37,697 — 916,911
Transaction costs — — — 14,426
Restructuring expenses — — — 56,717
Loss on sale of assets — — — 1,190,002
Operating loss before income taxes — (37,697) — (1,207,260)
Income tax expense — (3,714) — (1,025)
Loss from discontinued operations $ — $ (33983) 8 = $ (1,206,235)

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2023, the Company recorded a total of $56,717 in expected restructuring expenses, which consisted of severance and related benefits costs. The Company paid $56,717 in restructuring
charges in 2023 and had no restructuring accruals recorded at either September 30, 2024 or December 31, 2023.

NOTE 6 -INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company’s identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are being amortized over their estimated useful lives and were as follows:

September 30, 2024

Estimated Useful Life Gross Carrying Amount A d Amortization Net
Tradenames & trademarks 8 years $ 17,900,000 $ (5,119,792) $ 12,780,208
Developed technology 4 years 2,400,000 (1,500,000) 900,000
Backlog 1 year 600,000 (600,000) =
$ 20,900,000 $ (7,219,792) $ 13,680,208

December 31, 2023

Estimated Useful Life Gross Carrying Amount A Amortization Net
Tradenames & trademarks 3-8 years $ 22,187,882 $ (7,729,549) $ 14,458,333
Developed technology 4 years 2,400,000 (1,050,000) 1,350,000
Backlog 1 year 600,000 (600,000) =
$ 25,187,882 $ (9.379.549) $ 15,808,333
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Amortization expense on these identifiable intangible assets was $709,375 and $1,216,698 during the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively and $2,128,125 and $3,700,095 during the nine months ended September
30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The estimated future amortization expense for identifiable intangible assets during the next fiscal years is as follows:

Quarter Ending and Year Ending December 31:

Q42024 $ 709,375
2025 2,837,500
2026 2,387,500
2027 2,237,500
2028 2,237,500
Thereafter 3,270,833
Total $ 13,680,208

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Loan Payable

Pineapple Energy has a loan in an original amount of $7,500,000 payable to Hercules Capital, Inc. (“Hercules™) under a loan and security agreement (the “Term Loan Agreement”). This loan accrues interest at 10%, payable-in-kind (“PIK™)
and was initially due and payable on December 10, 2023. There are no financial covenants associated with this loan. This loan was used to acquire fixed assets, inventory, and intangible assets of Sungevity in an asset acquisition in December
2020. As the transaction did not involve the exchange of monetary consideration, the assets were valued at the Company’s most reliable indication of fair value, which was debt issued in consideration for the assets. Accordingly, Pineapple
Energy assessed the fair market value of the debt instrument at $4,768,000 at the asset acquisition date (a non-recurring Level 3 fair value input). The Company initially accreted the value of the debt over its life at a discount rate of
approximately 25%.

On December 16, 2021, the Term Loan Agreement was amended, whereby, among other things, the maturity date was extended to December 31, 2024, subject to various prepayment criteria. In addition, the amendment provided that
$4,500,000 plus all accrued and unpaid interest and expenses were to be repaid upon Closing and receipt of the PIPE funds, with the remaining principal to be paid upon the loan maturity date. The amendment represented a modification to
the loan agreement with the existing lender as both the original loan agreement and the amendment allow for immediate prepayment and the Company passed the cash flow test.

On May 31, 2023, the Term Loan Agreement was further amended (the “Second Amendment™), primarily for the purpose of obtaining consent for the senior financing from Decathlon Specialty Finance, LLC (the “Decathlon Financing”), the
proceeds of which were partially applied to repay $1,500,000 of the principal amount of the term loan. At the time of the Second Amendment and prior to the repayment, the aggregate remaining balance of the term loan, including principal
and interest, was $3,375,742. The Second Amendment also extended the maturity date of the term loan to June 2, 2027 and set the interest rate at ten percent (10.0%) payable monthly and removing the PIK interest. The aggregate remaining
principal balance of $1,875,742 along with interest is payable in equal monthly installments of principal and interest beginning on July 3, 2023 and continuing on the first business day of each month thereafter. The Second Amendment
represented a modification under ASC 470-50 as the original loan agreement and the amended agreement are not substantially different.

On July 22, 2024, the Term Loan Agreement was further amended (the “Third Amendment”), primarily for the purpose of obtaining consent for the bridge loan financing from Conduit Capital U.S. Holdings LLC and MBB Energy, LLC. The
Third Amendment represented a modification under ASC 470-50 as the original loan agreement and the amended agreement were not substantially different. The Company also entered into a Joinder and Amendment to Subordination
Agreement (the “Joinder Agreement”) with Decathlon, Hercules Capital, Inc., Conduit and MBB. Pursuant thereto, Conduit and MBB became parties to the Subordination Agreement dated June 21, 2023, among the Company, Decathlon, and
Hercules Capital, Inc. In accordance with the Joinder Agreement, Conduit and MBB agreed to subordinate their
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respective security interests in the Company’s assets, to the first priority security interest of Decathlon and the second security priority interest of Hercules.

On September 20, 2024, the Term Loan Agreement was further amended (the “Fourth Amendment”), whereby Hercules waived the October 2024 amortization payment. The Company made payment of monthly interest on October 1, 2024
and will resume making monthly payment of principal on November 1, 2024 pursuant to the loan agreement. The Fourth Amendment represented a modification as both the original loan agreement and the amendment allow for immediate
prepayment and the Company passed the cash flow test.

At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the combined loan and accrued interest balance was $628,469 and $497,052, respectively. A new effective interest rate of approximately 48.6% was established during the second quarter of
2023 based on the carrying value of the revised cash flows.

Interest and accretion expense was $179,295 and $227,975 for three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $574,415 and $640,616 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The loan is
collateralized by all of Pineapple Energy’s personal property and assets.

SUNation Short-Term and Long-Term Notes

In connection with the SUNation acquisition, on November 9, 2022, the Company issued a $5,000,000 Short-Term Limited Recourse Secured Promissory Note (the “Short-Term Note™) and a $5,486,000 Long-Term Promissory Note (the
“Long-Term Note”). The $5,000,000 Short-Term Note was secured by a pledge by the Company and Merger Sub of the equity of SUNation purchased under the Transaction Agreement and was scheduled to mature on August 9, 2023. It
carried an annual interest rate of 4% until the three-month anniversary of issuance, 8% thereafter until the six-month anniversary of issuance, then 12% thereafter until the Short-Term Note was paid in full. On June 1, 2023 the Company used
funds from the Decathlon Financing to repay the Short-Term Note in full. The repayment of Short-Term Note has been recorded as a debt extinguishment as the Company is relieved of its obligation under the Short-Term Note and the related
pledge by the Company of the equity of SUNation to secure the repayment of the Short-Term Note has been terminated. Since the Short-Term Note was with a related party, the Company recorded a capital contribution of $36,291 based on
the difference between the carrying amount and reacquisition price of the Short-Term Note.

The $5,486,000 Long-Term Note is unsecured and matures on November 9, 2025. It carries an annual interest rate of 4% until the first anniversary of issuance, then 8% thereafter until the Long-Term Note is paid in full. Interest is due
annually on each December 31%. The Company was unable to make the second interest payment totaling $250,703 due on December 31, 2023. The Company was required to make a principal payment of $2,740,000 on November 9, 2024.
The Company is not permitted to make any payments under the Long-Term Note unless Decathlon (defined below) has provided prior written consent to such payment pursuant to the Loan Agreement. Pursuant to that certain subordination
letter dated May 31, 2023, each holder of the Long-Term Note has subordinated all payments under the Long-Term Note to the obligations owed to Decathlon under the Loan Agreement (the “Decathlon Obligations™) and has agreed that, until
the Decathlon Obligations have been paid in full, any payment under the Long-Term Note is subject to Decathlon’s prior written consent. As the debt was part of the SUNation purchase price allocation, the Company assessed the fair market
value of the debt instrument at $4,830,533 at the asset acquisition date (a non-recurring Level 3 fair value input). The Company accretes the value of the debt over its life at a discount rate of approximately 11.2%. The Long-Term Note may
be prepaid at the Company’s option at any time without penalty.

The balance of Long-Term Note recorded at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was $5,959,961 and $5,499,716, respectively. Interest and accretion expense related to the notes totaled $154,535 and $154,535 for the three months
ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively, and $460,245 and $624,954 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Decathlon Fixed Loan

On June 1, 2023, the Company entered into a Revenue Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loan Agreement™) with Decathlon Specialty Finance, LLC (“Decathlon™). The Loan Agreement provides for a loan facility for the Company in the
maximum amount of $7.5 million with a maturity date of June 1, 2027 (the “Decathlon Fixed Loan”), with the full amount being advanced to the Company upon execution of the Loan Agreement. The Decathlon Fixed Loan contains



customary conditions, representations and warranties, affirmative and negative covenants, mandatory prepayment provisions and events of default. The advances are secured by all present and hereafter acquired property of the Company.

At issuance of the Loan Agreement, the Company concluded that the potential acceleration of amounts outstanding under the Loan Agreement upon an event of default included a substantial premium and met the requirement to be bifurcated
and recorded as a derivative liability at fair value at inception and at the end of each quarterly reporting period. However, based on management’s estimates of the likelihood of certain events, the embedded derivative liability had no fair value
at issuance and at the end of each of the reporting periods ended prior to June 30, 2024. As of September 30, 2024, the fair value of this embedded derivative liability was estimated to be $403,400 and was recorded within current liabilities.
For the three months ended September 30, 2024, the Company recorded a gain of $652,200 from the change in fair value of the derivative liability from June 30, 2024, which is included in “Other (expense) income, net" in the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss. For the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Company recorded a loss of $403,400 from the change in fair value of the derivative liability, which is included in “Other (expense)
income, net" in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

The Decathlon Fixed Loan is repayable in fixed monthly payments, which generally aggregate to $960,000 that was paid in 2023, $2,220,000 payable in 2024, $2,580,000 payable in 2025, $2,760,000 payable in 2026 and $3,480,000 payable
in 2027 to the maturity date. All outstanding advances and interest under the Loan Agreement are due at maturity on June 1, 2027 (unless accelerated upon a change of control or the occurrence of other events of default). Interest accrues on
the amounts advanced pursuant to the Loan Agreement at such rate as is necessary to generate an amount equal to the Minimum Interest, which is defined in the Loan Agreement as the following multiple of the advanced amount depending on
the period during which all amounts due under the Loan Agreement are paid: (i) 0.25 times if on or before 12 months after the Effective Date (as defined in the Loan Agreement); (ii) 0.35 times if after 12 months and on or before 24 months
after the Effective Date; (iii) 0.50 times if after 24 months and on or before 36 months after the Effective Date; and 0.60 times if after 36 months after the Effective Date. The Company may at its option prepay the advance(s) and accrued but
unpaid interest from time to time without penalty or premium (other than payment of the Minimum Interest (as defined in the Loan Agreement)).

On September 12, 2024, the Loan Agreement was amended, whereby Decathlon postponed the due date of the monthly payment due on September 15, 2024 to the earlier of (i) the closing of an equity raise resulting in gross proceeds of at
least $2,000,000, and (ii) October 15, 2024. The amendment represented a modification as both the original loan agreement and the amendment allow for immediate prepayment and the Company passed the cash flow test. The Company
made this payment on September 30, 2024.

The Company incurred an aggregate of $348,065 in debt issuance costs that are recorded as a discount and are amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the Decathlon Fixed Loan using an effective interest rate of 21%. A
new effective interest rate of approximately 21.4% was established during the third quarter of 2024 based on the carrying value of the revised cash flows. At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the combined loan and accrued
interest balance was $6,818,982 and $7,408,925, respectively, and the unamortized debt issuance costs balance was $198,863 and $280,856, respectively. The Company recorded interest expense of $372,872 and $407,082 for the three months
ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $1,142,049 and $534,780 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Conduit Capital Bridge Loan

On July 22, 2024, the Company obtained bridge loan financing for working capital purposes from Conduit Capital U.S. Holdings LLC (“Conduit”), an unaffiliated lender (the “Original Conduit Note™). On such date, Conduit loaned the
principal sum of $500,000 to the Company on an original issue (“OID”) basis of 20% and accordingly, Conduit advanced $400,000 to the Company (the “Initial Conduit Loan”). The loans due to Conduit will accrue interest on the unpaid
principal amount, without deduction for the OID, at an annual rate of 20%; provided that payment in full on the Conduit Maturity Date (as defined below) satisfies the interest accrual on the loans from initial issuance to the Conduit Maturity
Date. The Company may request that Conduit provide additional advances for working capital on identical terms, conditions and interest rate as the Initial Conduit Loan on an OID basis, up to an aggregate principal sum of $500,000, and
Conduit shall have the right, without commitment or obligation, to make such requested loan(s) by advancing 80%
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percent of the principal thereof. All such loans are secured by a pledge of all of the Company’s assets. As a condition to such loan(s), the Company agreed to cause the nomination of a designee of Conduit for election to its Board of Directors.

The loans due to Conduit will become due on July 21, 2025 (the “Conduit Maturity Date™). In accordance with the terms of the loan agreements with Conduit, if the Company consummates one or more equity offerings prior to the Conduit
Maturity Date in which it derives aggregate gross proceeds of at least $3.15 million, it will be required to repay the unpaid principal balance of the Initial Conduit Loan, including the OID, simultaneous with the closing(s) of such offering(s).
Further, if the Company consummates one or more equity offerings prior to the Conduit Maturity Date in which it derives aggregate gross proceeds of at least $4.4 million, the Company will be required to repay the entire unpaid principal
amount of all loans due to Conduit, including the OID, simultaneous with the closing(s) of such offering(s).

At issuance of the Original Conduit Note, the Company concluded that the potential acceleration of amounts outstanding under the loan agreements with Conduit upon an event of default or if the Company consummates one or more equity
offerings meeting certain criteria (as noted above) included a substantial premium and met the requirement to be bifurcated and recorded as a derivative liability at fair value at inception and revalued at the end of each quarterly reporting
period. The Company determined the initial fair value of this embedded derivative liability to be $8,080 and recorded a corresponding debt discount. As of September 30, 2024, the fair value of this embedded derivative liability was estimated
to be $38,868 and was recorded within current liabilities. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Company recorded a loss of $30,284 from the change in fair value of the derivative liability, which is included in “Other
(expense) income, net" in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

The Company incurred $18,150 in debt issuance costs in connection with the Initial Conduit Loan that were recorded as a discount and initially amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the Initial Conduit Loan along with
the OID of $100,000 and initial fair value of the embedded derivative liability using an effective interest rate of approximately 29.1%.

On September 9, 2024, the Company and Conduit entered into an Amended and Restated Convertible Secured Note (the “First Amended Conduit Note”) which amended the Original Conduit Note, which provided for an additional principal
advance of $120,000 (the “Second Conduit Advance”). The First Amended Conduit Note also provides that Conduit may convert all or any portion of the Second Conduit Advance and all accrued but unpaid interest thereon into a number of
shares (the “Conduit Note Conversion Shares”) of the Company’s common stock calculated as the total dollar amount to be converted divided by $22.50 (80.45 prior to the Reverse Stock Splits) (the “Conversion Price™). The Company
analyzed the changes made in the First Amended Conduit Note under ASC 470-50 to determine if extinguishment accounting was applicable. Under ASC 470-50-40-10, a modification or an exchange that adds or eliminates a substantive
conversion option as of the conversion date is always considered substantial and requires extinguishment accounting. Since the First Amended Conduit Note added a substantive conversion option, extinguishment accounting is applicable. In
accordance with the extinguishment accounting guidance, the Company recorded a loss on extinguishment of $35,657 which represents the difference between (a) the fair value of the modified loans due to Conduit less the net cash proceeds
received from the Second Conduit Advance and (b) the carrying amount of the loans due to Conduit immediately prior to the Second Conduit Advance.

On September 23, 2024, the Company and Conduit entered into a further amended and restated convertible secured credit note (the “Second Amended Conduit Note™), which amends and restates the First Amended Conduit Note. Under the
terms of the Second Amended Conduit Note, Conduit loaned an additional principal sum of $380,000 to the Company (the “Third Conduit Advance™) on an OID basis of 20%. Additionally, pursuant to the Second Amended Conduit Note,
Conduit was granted a demand registration right, which is in addition to the piggyback registration rights set forth in the First Amended Conduit Note, which registration rights are inclusive of all convertible shares issuable for the Second
Conduit Advance and Third Conduit Advance, if converted; however, all out of pocket costs and expenses incurred in connection with this demand registration right shall borne by Conduit. The Third Conduit Advance, together with all
accrued but unpaid interest thereon, are convertible into shares of common stock at the Conversion Price. The Second Amended Conduit Note represented a modification under ASC 470-50 as the First Amended Conduit Note and the Second
Amended Conduit Note are not substantially different. A new effective interest rate of approximately 22.9% was established following the Third Conduit Advance based on the carrying value of the revised cash flows.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary as set forth in the Conduit Note or any tranche or amendment related thereto, in no event shall the Original Issue Discount, together with interest payable under the Conduit Note or such other
documents related thereto, exceed an aggregate of twenty percent on the then outstanding principal sum, except in the event of a default, which shall include an additional 5% on the then outstanding principal sum.

At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the loan balance was $1,000,000 and $0, respectively, and the unamortized debt issuance costs balance was $168,911 and $0, respectively. The Company recorded interest and accretion
expense of $24,167 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024.

MBB Energy Bridge Loan

On July 22, 2024, the Company obtained bridge loan financing for working capital purposes from MBB Energy, LLC (“MBB”), an affiliate of the Company (the “Original MBB Note”). On such date, MBB loaned the principal sum of
$500,000 to the Company on an OID basis of 20% and accordingly, MBB advanced the sum of $400,000 to the Company (the “Initial MBB Loan”). The loans due to MBB will accrue interest on the unpaid principal amount, without
deduction for the OID, at an annual rate of 20%; provided that payment in full on the MBB Maturity Date (as defined below) satisfies the interest accrual on the loans from initial issuance to the Conduit Maturity Date. The Company may
request that MBB provide additional advances for working capital on identical terms, conditions and interest rate as the Initial MBB Loan on an OID basis, up to an aggregate principal sum of $500,000, and MBB shall have the right, without
commitment or obligation, to make such requested loan(s) by advancing 80% percent of the principal thereof. All such loans are secured by a pledge of all of the Company’s assets. MBB has granted Conduit the exclusive right to enforce
MBB’s loans on MBB’s behalf.

The loans due to MBB will become due on July 21, 2025 (the “MBB Maturity Date™). In accordance with the terms of the loan agreements with MBB, if the Company consummates one or more equity offerings prior to the MBB Maturity
Date in which it derives aggregate gross proceeds of at least $3.15 million, it will be required to repay the unpaid principal balance of the Initial MBB Loan, including the OID, simultaneous with the closing(s) of such offering(s). Further, if
the Company consummates one or more equity offerings prior to the MBB Maturity Date in which the Company derives aggregate gross proceeds of at least $4.4 million, the Company will be required to repay the entire unpaid principal
amount of all loans due to MBB, including the OID, simultaneous with the closing(s) of such offering(s).

At issuance of the Original MBB Note, the Company concluded that the potential acceleration of amounts outstanding under the loan agreements with MBB upon an event of default or if the Company consummates one or more equity
offerings meeting certain criteria (as noted above) included a substantial premium and met the requirement to be bifurcated and recorded as a derivative liability at fair value at inception and at the end of each quarterly reporting period. The
Company determined the initial fair value of this embedded derivative liability to be $8,080 and recorded a corresponding debt discount. As of September 30, 2024, the fair value of this embedded derivative liability was estimated to be
$42,725 and was recorded within current liabilities. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Company recorded a loss of $34,645 from the change in fair value of the derivative liability, which is included in “Other
(expense) income, net" in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

The OID of $100,000 was recorded as a discount and initially amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the Initial MBB Loan along with the initial fair value of the embedded derivative liability using an effective interest
rate of approximately 24.3%.

On August 16, 2024, MBB provided an additional principal advance of $500,000 (the “Second MBB Advance”). The Second MBB Advance represented a modification under ASC 470-50. A new effective interest rate of approximately 24.1%
was established following the Second MBB Advance based on the carrying value of the revised cash flows.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary as set forth in the MBB Note or any tranche or amendment related thereto, in no event shall the Original Issue Discount, together with interest payable under the MBB Note or such other documents
related thereto, exceed an aggregate of twenty percent on the then outstanding principal sum, except in the event of a default, which shall include an additional 5% on the then outstanding principal sum.
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At September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the loan balance was $1,000,000 and $0, respectively, and the unamortized debt issuance costs balance was $177,140 and $0, respectively. The Company recorded interest and accretion
expense of $30,940 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024.

Equipment Loans

The Company obtains various equipment loan agreements through SUNation. These loans are secured by machinery and equipment and expire at various dates through August 2029 with interest rates ranging from 4.5 to 9.7% per annum. The
balance for the equipment loans recorded at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was $256,607 and $333,717, respectively. Interest expense was $5,299 and $6,150 for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, and $16,859 and $11,802 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Promissory Note

Through the SUNation acquisition, the Company acquired a promissory note with a former shareholder and member of SUNation through a buyout agreement. The promissory note includes monthly payments of principal and interest at an
annual rate of 3.25%. The promissory note matures on March 1, 2031. The balance for the promissory note recorded at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was $1,471,843 and $1,656,416, respectively. Interest expense was $12,295
and $15,337 for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $38,385 and $44,243 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Lease Termination

Effective September 30, 2024, the Company entered into a lease termination agreement with our Minnesota office landlord for the property located at 10900 Red Circle Drive, Minnetonka, MN 55343, pursuant to which the Company will pay
a termination fee totaling $189,000 to be paid at $13,500 per month for a period of fourteen (14) months from entry into this lease termination, as well as the Company waiving its right to its original security deposit provided at entry into the
original lease in the amount of $35,434. The lease termination resulted is a decrease to the Company’s operating lease right of uses assets totaling $415,674 and operating lease liabilities totaling $424,694, which along with the termination fee
and write off the security deposit resulted in a loss on the termination of the lease totaling $215,415 recorded in operating expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2024. The $189,000 liability for the termination fee is recorded within other accrued liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2024.

Other Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is exposed to legal actions and claims and incurs costs to defend against these actions and claims. Company management is not aware of any outstanding or pending legal actions or claims that
could materially affect the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

We have accrued $400,000 for estimated loss contingencies related to certain prior securities issuances, and if such contingencies become payable, they may take the form of payment in stock, cash or some combination of the foregoing.
NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party receivables

The Company has provided advances to employees resulting in a balance as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 of $25,749 and $46,448, respectively.
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Related party payables

As part of the acquisition of SUNation, the Company agreed to reimburse the sellers for proceeds received related to SUNation’s employee retention credit (a refundable tax credit against certain employment taxes incurred during the first
nine months of 2021), totaling $1,584,541 as of December 31, 2022. The full amount of this credit was received by the Company and subsequently remitted to the sellers during the three months ended March 31, 2023. The Company also
agreed to reimburse the sellers approximately $597,219 for tax payments due related to the period prior to acquisition, of which the full amount was paid during 2023, leaving no remaining balance at either September 30, 2024 or December
31,2023,

Leases

The Company leases its offices in Hawaii from a company owned by the prior owner of HEC, of whom is still an employee. The Company leased its New York office from a company owned by the prior owners of SUNation, one of whom is
an officer and another the Interim Chief Executive Officer and director of the Company, until September 12, 2024, when the building and related lease was sold to a third-party.

NOTE 9 — SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

2022 Equity Incentive Plan

On January 24, 2022 the CSI board of directors adopted, and on March 16, 2022 the Company’s shareholders approved, the Company’s 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (“2022 Plan”), which became effective on March 28, 2022. The 2022 Plan
authorizes incentive awards to officers, key employees, non-employee directors, and consultants in the form of options (incentive and non-qualified), stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, stock unit awards, and other stock-based
awards. Following amendments approved on December 7, 2022 and July 19, 2024, the 2022 Plan authorizes the issuance of up to 13,333 shares of common stock (10,000,000 prior to the Reverse Stock Splits). At September 30, 2024, 614
shares had been issued under the 2022 Plan, 237 shares were subject to currently outstanding unvested restricted stock units (“RSUs”), and 12,482 shares were available for grant under future awards.

Inducement Grants

On October 10, 2022, the board of directors approved an inducement grant of 110 RSUs in connection with the hiring of a new Chief Financial Officer. On November 6, 2022, the board of directors approved inducement grants totaling 179
RSUs in connection with the hiring of Senior Vice Presidents in connection with the SUNation acquisition.

Changes in Restricted Stock Units O di

The following table summarizes the changes in the number of RSUs during the nine months ended September 30, 2024:

Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value

RSUs Per Share
Outstanding — December 31, 2023 1,047 $ 1,513.36
Units Granted 168 442.50
Shares Issued (331) 1,264.71
Forfeited (527) 1,065.74
Outstanding — September 30, 2024 357 1,350.17

All RSUs and weighted average grant date fair value per share values have been adjusted to reflect the impact of the Reverse Stock Splits of the common stock at ratios of 1-for-50 that became effective on October 17, 2024 and 1-for-15 that
became effective on June 12, 2024. See Note 1, "Nature of Operations," for further details.
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Compensation Expense

Share-based compensation expense recognized for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 was $(201,922) and $353,843, respectively, and $(16,199) and $966,825 for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023.
Unrecognized compensation expense related to outstanding RSUs was $141,894 at September 30, 2024 and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.4 years. Share-based compensation expense is recorded as a part of
selling, general and administrative expenses.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On December 7, 2022, the Company’s shareholders approved an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), pursuant to which eligible employees are able to acquire shares of common stock at a purchase price determined by the board of
directors or compensation committee prior to the start of each six-month plan phase, which price may not be less than 85% of the fair market value of the lower of the value on the first day or the last day of the phase, or the value on the last
day of the phase. The ESPP is considered compensatory under current Internal Revenue Service rules. At September 30, 2024, 400 shares remained available for purchase under the ESPP.

NOTE 10 - EQUITY
Series A Preferred Stock

In June 2021, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement to issue Series A Preferred Stock. At such time, the Series A Preferred Stock contained certain anti-dilution provisions. In November 2022, the Company amended and
restated the agreement under which Series A Preferred shareholders agreed to waive such provisions in exchange for certain concessions from the Company. The Company’s outstanding Series A Preferred Stock contained anti-dilution
provisions that would increase the number of shares issuable upon conversion, and lower the conversion price of the Series A Preferred Stock if the Company issues equity securities at a price less than the current conversion price of the Series
A Preferred Stock at the time of such issuance. In February 2024, the Company entered into a Limited Waiver and Amendment (“Waiver”) and the investors agreed to a floor of $105.00 (30.14 prior to the Reverse Stock Splits) with respect to
the adjustment set forth for the conversion price and to waive future anti-dilution protection with respect to 50% of the shares of Preferred Stock held by such purchasers as of the date of the Waiver.

The Company is required to analyze amendments to preferred stock terms to determine the appropriate method of accounting to be applied. While guidance exists in ASC 470-50 to address the accounting for debt modifications, including
preferred stock that is accounted for as a liability, there is no comparable guidance to address the accounting for modifications to preferred stock instruments that are accounted for as equity or temporary equity, which necessitates the
subjective determination of whether a modification or exchange represents an extinguishment. Current accounting guidance permits the analysis of preferred stock modifications by using either the qualitative approach, the fair value approach
or the cash flow approach. Due to the nature of the amendment made to the preferred stock terms and consistent with its prior policy, the Company determined that the fair value approach was the most appropriate methodology. Based on the
quantitative method, the Company determined that the Waiver resulted in an extinguishment of the Series A Preferred Stock. As a result, the Series A Preferred Stock was revalued immediately after the Waiver in February 2024. The
difference between the previous carrying amount and the fair value of $751,125 was recognized as a deemed dividend in the three months ended March 31, 2024 that reduced additional paid-in-capital (“APIC™) and income available to
common shareholders in calculating earnings per share.

In addition, management evaluated the Series A Preferred Stock after the modifications and determined that they should be reclassified to mezzanine equity under ASC 480-10-S99 as a result of the Company not having sufficient authorized
and unissued shares to settle a conversion to Common Stock.

On July 19, 2024, the shareholders of the Company approved an amendment to the Company’s Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (the “Articles of Incorporation™) to increase the number of authorized shares of common
stock and as a result the Company now had sufficient authorized and unissued shares to settle a conversion to common

30



stock. Accordingly, the Series A Preferred Stock was reclassified to permanent equity at the date of the event that caused the reclassification.

On September 9, 2024, as a result of the issuance of the First Amended Conduit Note (see Note 7, “Commitments and Contingencies,” for further details), the adjustment provisions in the Series A Preferred Stock were triggered and caused
certain adjustments in the currently effective conversion price of the Series A Preferred Stock. The Company recognized the effect of the down round feature triggered on September 9, 2024 as the difference between: (1) the fair value of the
Series A Preferred Stock using the pre-trigger conversion price, and (2) the fair value of the Series A Preferred Stock using the reduced conversion price. The value of the effect of the down round feature of $3,464,426 was recognized as a
deemed dividend in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 that reduced APIC and income available to common shareholders in calculating earnings per share.

Warrants

In September 2021, the Company entered into transactions with holders of its outstanding Series A Preferred Stock to issue PIPE Warrants to purchase the Company's common stock. At such time, the PIPE Warrants contained certain anti-
dilution provisions. In November 2022, the Company amended and restated the agreement under which PIPE Warrant holders agreed to waive such provisions in exchange for certain concessions from the Company. The Company’s
outstanding Series A Warrants have anti-dilution provisions that would increase the number of shares issuable upon exercise and lower the exercise price of the Series A Warrants if the Company issues equity securities at a price less than the
current exercise price of the Series A Warrants at the time of such issuance. Pursuant to the Waiver, investors agreed to a floor of $22.50 ($0.14 prior to the Reverse Stock Splits) with respect to the anti-dilution adjustments in the warrants and
extend the term of the warrants until March 28, 2029.

The PIPE Warrants were valued immediately before and immediately after the modifications to calculate the $10.6 million incremental value of the modified PIPE Warrants. The Company considered this incremental value to be a deemed
dividend that reduced income available to common shareholders in calculating earnings per share.

Management evaluated the warrants after the modifications made in February 2024 and determined that they should be reclassified from equity to liability based on the guidance in ASC 815-40 and the Company failing to have enough
authorized and unissued shares available to settle an exercise of the contract. In accordance with ASC 815-40, the carrying value of the warrants were adjusted to fair value through an adjustment in stockholders’ equity immediately prior to
the reclassification. Subsequent to the reclassification, management remeasured the warrant liability to fair value and recorded the change in fair value to other income (expense) in the condensed consolidated statement of operations.

On July 19, 2024, the shareholders of the Company approved an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock and as a result the Company now has sufficient authorized and
unissued shares to settle an exercise of the contract. Accordingly, management determined that the warrants should be reclassified to equity. In accordance with the guidance in ASC 815-40-35-10, management remeasured the warrant liability
to fair value immediately before the reclassification and recorded the change in fair value to other income (expense) in the condensed consolidated statement of operations.

On September 9, 2024, as a result of the issuance of the First Amended Conduit Note (see Note 7, “Commitments and Contingencies,” for further details), the adjustment provisions in the warrants were triggered and caused certain
adjustments in the currently effective exercise price of the warrants and a proportional increase in the amount of shares of common stock issuable under the warrants. The Company recognized the effect of the down round feature triggered on
September 9, 2024 as the difference between: (1) the fair value of the warrants using the pre-trigger conversion price, and (2) the fair value of the warrants using the reduced conversion price. The value of the effect of the down round feature
of $875,737 was recognized as a deemed dividend in the three months ended September 30, 2024 that reduced income available to common shareholders in calculating earnings per share.

On September 9, 2024, the Company entered into a Securities Exchange Agreement with the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and warrants to cancel and retire the Series A Preferred Stock and warrants in exchange for shares of Series
C Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company (the “Series C Preferred Stock™). The Company determined that the exchange of the Series A Preferred Stock and warrants for the Series C Preferred Stock resulted in the extinguishment of the
Series A
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Preferred Stock and warrants. As a result, the difference between the carrying amount of the Series A Preferred Stock and warrants and the fair value of the Series C Preferred Stock of $4,075,681 was recognized as a deemed contribution in
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024 that increased APIC and income available to common shareholders in calculating earnings per share.

Series C Preferred Stock

On September 9, 2024, the Company’s board of directors authorized the issuance of up to 35,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock. As a result of the exchanged noted above, the Company issued 28,041 shares of Series C Preferred Stock.
Each share of Series C Preferred Stock is convertible, at any time after issuance and at the option of the holder subject to certain beneficial ownership limitations, into a number of shares of common stock determined by dividing the Stated
Value of such share by the Conversion Price. The Stated Value per share of Series C Preferred Stock is $1,000.00 and the Conversion Price per share of Series C Preferred Stock is $22.50 ($0.45 prior to the October Reverse Stock Split). The
Series C Preferred Stock does not contain any of the price resets set forth in the Series A Preferred Stock, except in the case of stock splits, recapitalizations and similar transactions by the Company. At issuance, the Series C Preferred Stock
was convertible into 1,246,262 shares of common stock (62,313,111 prior to the October Reverse Stock Split). During the third quarter of 2024, 17,233 shares of Series C Preferred Stock were converted into 765,912 shares of common stock
(38,295,627 prior to the October Reverse Stock Split). As of September 30, 2024, there were 10,808 shares of Series C Preferred Stock outstanding, which were convertible into 480,350 shares of common stock (24,017,484 prior to the
October Reverse Stock Split).

The holders of Series C Preferred Stock are entitled to vote exclusively with respect to a proposal submitted to the Company’s shareholders at a meeting of shareholders to be held by the Company to approve the changing of the Company’s
state of incorporation from the State of Minnesota to the State of Delaware together as a single class with the common stock on an as-converted basis, subject to the beneficial ownership limitations, as follows: each share of Series C Preferred
Stock shall be entitled to such number of votes equal to the quotient obtained by dividing: (i) the Stated Value by (ii) $39.573 ($0.79146 prior to the Reverse Stock Splits). As long as any shares of Preferred Stock are outstanding, the
Company shall not, without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock, (a) alter or change adversely the powers, preferences or rights given to the Series C Preferred Stock or
alter or amend the Certificate of Designation, (b) authorize or create any class of stock ranking as to redemption senior to the Series C Preferred Stock, (c) amend its articles of incorporation or other charter documents in any manner that
adversely affects any rights of the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock, (d) increase the number of authorized shares of the Company’s preferred stock, or () enter into any agreement with respect to any of the foregoing. The holders of
Series C Preferred Stock are not entitled to voting rights except for the foregoing and to the extent required by law.

Series B Preferred Stock

On May 13, 2024, the Company entered into a Subscription and Investment Representation Agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and sell one share of the Company’s Series B Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share
(“Series B Preferred Stock™), for $15. The sale closed on May 14, 2024.

On May 13, 2024, the Company filed a certificate of designation (the “Certificate of Designation™) with the Secretary of State of Minnesota, effective as of May 13, 2024, designating the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of the
share of the Series B Preferred Stock. The Certificate of Designation provides that the share of Series B Preferred Stock has 5,000,000,000 votes and will vote together with the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock as a single
class exclusively with respect to (i) any proposal to amend the Company’s Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (the “Articles”) to effect a reverse stock split of the Company’s common stock (the “Reverse Stock Split
Proposal”) and (ii) any proposal to adopt an amendment to the Articles, or any other proposal to otherwise approve or ratify, to increase the authorized number of shares of common stock, either by increasing the total number of authorized
shares or by effecting a reverse stock split without a corresponding decrease in the number of authorized shares (the “Authorized Shares Increase Proposal”). The Series B Preferred Stock will also be entitled to vote in the election of
directors, but will only have one vote to cast with respect to each director nominee.
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The Series B Preferred Stock must be voted, without action by the holder, in the same proportion as shares of common stock are voted. The Series B Preferred Stock otherwise has no voting rights except as otherwise required by the
Minnesota Business Corporation Act.

The Series B Preferred Stock is not convertible into, or exchangeable for, shares of any other class or series of stock or other securities of the Company, nor is it redeemable for cash or any other consideration. The Series B Preferred Stock has
no rights with respect to any distribution of assets of the Company, including upon a liquidation, bankruptcy, reorganization, merger, acquisition, sale, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, whether voluntarily or involuntarily. The
holder of the Series B Preferred Stock will not be entitled to receive dividends of any kind.

Under the Certificate of Designation, the outstanding share of Series B Preferred Stock will be cancelled in whole, but not in part, at any time (i) if such cancellation is ordered by the Company’s board of directors in its sole discretion or (ii)
automatically upon the approval by the Company’s shareholders of the Reverse Stock Split Proposal and Authorized Shares Increase Proposal at any meeting of sharcholders. The holder of the share of Series B Preferred Stock was not

entitled to any consideration upon such cancellation. The shareholders approved the Reverse Stock Split Proposal and Authorized Shares Increase Proposal on July 19, 2024 and, as a result, the share of Series B Preferred Stock was
automatically cancelled at that time.

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES
In the preparation of the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements, management calculates income taxes based upon the estimated effective rate applicable to operating results for the full fiscal year. This includes estimating the
current tax liability as well as assessing differences resulting from different treatment of items for tax and book accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are recorded on the balance sheet.

Management analyzes these assets and liabilities regularly and assesses the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income.

The Company’s effective income tax rate from continuing operations was 0.0% for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023. The effective tax rate differs from the federal tax rate of 21% due to state income taxes and changes in
valuation allowances related to deferred tax assets.

NOTE 12 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The accounting guidance establishes a valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the inputs to valuation used to measure fair value. This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three broad levels as follows:

Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar instruments and quoted prices in markets that are not active, and inputs that are directly observable or can be corroborated by observable market data. The types of assets and
liabilities included in Level 2 are typically either comparable to actively traded securities or contracts, such as treasury securities with pricing interpolated from recent trades of similar securities, or priced with models using highly observable

inputs, such as commodity options priced using observable forward prices and volatilities.

Level 3 — Significant inputs to pricing that have little or no observability as of the reporting date. The types of assets and liabilities included in Level 3 are those with inputs requiring significant management judgment or estimation, such as
the complex and subjective models and forecasts used to determine the fair value of financial instruments.
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are summarized below.

Cash equivalents:
Money market funds
Subtotal

Liabilities:
Contingent value rights
Embedded derivative liability
Earnout consideration
Subtotal

Total

Cash equivalents:
Money market funds
Subtotal

Current Liabilities:
Contingent value rights
Earnout consideration

Subtotal

Total

September 30, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value
$ 1,240,882 $ $ — 1,240,882
1,240,882 = = 1,240,882
— (1,212,263) (1,212,263)
— (484,993) (484,993)
— (2,700,000) (2,700,000)
= (4.397.256) (4.397.256)
3 1240882  $ 5 (4,397.256) (3.156,374)
December 31, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair Value
$ 1,799,357 $ $ — 1,799,357
1,799,357 — 1,799,357
— (1,691,072) (1,691,072)
= (3.500,000) (3.500,000)
— (5.191,072) (5.191,072)
$ 1,799,357 $ $ (5,191,072) (3,391,715)

The following tables present reconciliations of recurring fair value measurements that use significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

June 30, 2024

Additions

Fair value adjustments
Reclassification to equity
September 30, 2024

Three Months Ended September 30, 2024

value rights ‘Warrant liability Embe derivative liability Earnout consideration Total
(1,198212)  § (9.806,409)  § (1,055,600) (2,700,000) (14,760,221)
— — (16,664) — (16,664)
(14,051) (1,435,845) 587,271 — (862,625)
— 11,242,254 — — 11,242,254
(1,212,263)  § = $ (484,993) (2,700,000) (4,397,256)
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June 30, 2023
Distribution

Fair value adjustments
September 30, 2023

December 31, 2023
Reclassification from equity
Additions

‘Warrant exercise

Fair value adjustments
Reclassification to equity
September 30, 2024

December 31, 2022
Distribution

Fair value adjustments
September 30, 2023

Three Months Ended 30,2023
value rights Earnout consideration Total

$ (6,010,520) (3.080,000) $ (9,090,520)

3,036,677 — 3,036,677

(239,922) (230,000) (469,922)

$ (3.213,765) (3,310,000 $ (6.523,765)

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024
value rights Warrant liability Embedded derivative liability Earnout consideration Total

(1,691,072) — $ — $ (3,500,000) (5,191,072)
— (10,592,220) — — (10,592,220)
— — (16,664) — (16,664)

— 324,789 — — 324,789
478,809 (974,823) (468,329) 800,000 (164,343)

— 11,242,254 — — 11,242,254
(1,212,263) = $ (484,993)  § (2,700.000) (4,397.256)

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023
value rights Earnout consideration Total

$ (7,402,715) (2,150,000) $ (9,552,715)

3,036,677 — 3,036,677
1,152,273 (1,160,000) (1.727)
$ (3,213,765) (3,310,000) $ (6,523,765)

The estimated fair value of the CVRs as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was $1,212,263 and $1,691,072, respectively, as noted above. The Company recorded a $478,809 gain on the fair value remeasurement of the CVRs

during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and a $1,152,273 gain on the fair value of the remeasurement of the CVRs during the nine months ended September 30, 2023.

The estimated fair value of earnout consideration related to the acquisition of SUNation as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was $2,700,000 and $3,500,000, respectively. Included in the $2,700,000 at September 30, 2024 is
$2,500,000 related to the first earnout period and $200,000 related to the second earnout period, both recorded in current liabilities. The estimated fair value is considered a Level 3 measurement. In order to update the fair value of the earnout
consideration, the Company utilized a Monte Carlo simulation, which included the following significant assumptions: the expected probability and timing of achievement of milestone events. As a result of the fair value remeasurement, the
Company recorded a remeasurement gain of $800,000 and a remeasurement loss of $1,160,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The estimated fair value of the PIPE warrants was $0 as of both September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. As noted in Note 10, the warrants were classified as a liability during the first quarter of 2024, resulting in a
$10,592,202 reclassification from equity. During the third quarter of 2024, the warrants met equity classification requirements upon the shareholder approval of an increase in authorized outstanding shares and reclassified the fair value
liability totaling $11,242,254 back to equity. The estimated fair value is considered a Level 3 measurement and the fair value of the warrant liability is determined using a Monte Carlo simulation to model future movement of the stock price.
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As a result of the fair value remeasurement, the Company recorded a remeasurement gain of $974,823 and $0 during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The estimated fair value of the embedded derivative liability was $484,993 and $0 as of September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. As a result of the fair value remeasurement, the Company recorded a remeasurement loss of
$468,329 and $0 during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The estimated fair value is considered a Level 3 measurement and the fair value of the embedded derivative liability is determined based on a
comparison of the present value of cash flows with and without the embedded derivative. This analysis includes management estimates of the likelihood of events of prepayment and default on the Decathlon, MBB and Conduit loans.

The fair value remeasurement related to the SUNation earnout was recorded within operating expenses. The other fair value remeasurements noted above were recorded within other (expense) income in the condensed consolidated statements
of operations.

We record transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy, if necessary, at the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers between levels during the nine months ended September 30, 2024.

NOTE 13 - GOING CONCERN

The Company’s financial statements as of September 30, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with GAAP applicable to a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of
business. Based on the Company’s current financial position, which includes approximately $1.1 million of restricted cash and cash equivalents that are restricted under the CVR agreement and cannot be used by the Company for its own
working capital needs, the Company did not have sufficient cash to make the first earnout payment under the SUNation Transaction Agreement, which was due on May 6, 2024, and the Company’s forecasted future cash flows for the twelve
months beyond the date of issuance of the financial statements in this report indicate that the Company does not have sufficient cash to make the first principal payment of the Long-Term Note that was due on November 9, 2024, a factor
which raises substantial doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. Notwithstanding the Company’s ability to make such payments, the Company is not permitted to make any
earnout payments under the SUNation Transaction Agreement or any payments under the Long-Term Note unless Decathlon has provided prior written consent to such payment pursuant to the Loan Agreement. Pursuant to that certain
subordination letter dated May 31, 2023, each holder of the Long-Term Note has subordinated all payments under the Long-Term Note to the obligations owed to Decathlon under the Loan Agreement and has agreed that, until the Decathlon
Obligations have been paid in full, any payment under the Long-Term Note is subject to Decathlon’s prior written consent. Therefore, if Decathlon does not consent to the first principal payment of the Long-Term Note, such non-payment
will not result in a default under the Long-Term Note. Failure to make earnout payments under the SUNation Transaction Agreement, which are prohibited under the Loan Agreement, could result in a breach under the SUNation Transaction
Agreement.

In order to continue as a going concern, the Company will need additional capital resources. Management plans to raise capital through sources that may include public or private equity offerings, debt financings and/or strategic alliances.

However, management cannot provide any assurances that the Company will be successful in accomplishing any of its plans. These financial statements do not include any adjustments related to the recoverability and classification of assets
or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

NOTE 14 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date of this filing.

Reverse Stock Split

Effective October 17, 2024, the Company amended its Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (“Articles of Amendment”) to implement a one-for-fifty reverse stock split. The Company’s common stock began trading on a

split-adjusted basis when the market opened on October 17, 2024 (the “Effective Date™). The Board of Directors of the
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Company approved the amendment to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to meet the share bid price requirements of the NASDAQ Capital Market. The Company’s stockholders approved the Articles of Amendment at its annual
meeting held on July 19, 2024.

As a result of the reverse stock split, at 12:01 a.m. Central Time on the Effective Date, every 50 shares of common stock then issued and outstanding automatically were combined into one share of common stock, with no change in par value
per share. No fractional shares were outstanding following the reverse stock split, and any fractional shares that would have resulted from the reverse stock split will be settled in cash. The total number of shares authorized for issuance was
reduced to 2,666,667 in proportion to the reverse stock split.

Nasdag Compliance

On October 1, 2024, the Company received a letter (the “Minimum Bid Price Deficiency Letter”) from the Listing Qualifications Department (the “Staff”) of The Nasdaq Stock Market (“Nasdaq™) notifying the Company that, for the 30
consecutive business day period from August 16 through September 30, 2024, the Company’s common stock had not maintained a minimum closing bid price of $1.00 per share (the “Minimum Bid Price Requirement™) required for continued
listing on The Nasdaq Capital Market pursuant to Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(a)(2). The Nasdaq letter did not result in the immediate delisting of the Company’s common stock from The Nasdaq Capital Market.

Pursuant to the previously disclosed Nasdaq hearing panel decision, dated July 18, 2024, the Company was subject to a mandatory panel monitor (“Panel”) under Nasdaq’s listing Rule 5815(d)(4)(B) for a period of one year. Accordingly, due
to the most recent minimum bid price deficiency, as is customary in similar situations, the Staff notified the Company that it will not be afforded a Cure Period. Instead, the Company was offered an opportunity to appeal any deficiency related
to a delisting determination to Nasdagq by or before October 8, 2024. The Company timely requested a hearing before the Hearing Panel and received a hearing date of November 21, 2024 and submitted an expedited bid price compliance plan
on October 14, 2024. The hearing request automatically stayed any suspension or delisting action pending the hearing and the expiration of any additional extension period if granted by the Panel following the hearing.

On November 8, 2024, the Company received notice from the Nasdaq Listing Qualifications staff that the Company has regained compliance with the bid price requirement in Listing Rule 5550(a)(2) and that the Company is, therefore, in
compliance with the Nasdaq Capital Market’s listing requirements. Consequently, the scheduled hearing before the Hearings Panel on November 21, 2024, was deemed moot and has been cancelled. The Company’s securities will continue to
be listed and traded on The Nasdaq Stock Market.

At the Market Offering

On October 21, 2024, the Company entered into an At the Market (“ATM”) Offering Agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) with Roth Capital Partners, LLC (the “Sales Agent”). The Company has authorized the sale, at its discretion, of
common stock shares in an aggregate offering amount up to $10,000,000 under the Sales Agreement. The Sales Agent will use commercially reasonable efforts consistent with normal trading and sales practices. The shares will be sold and
issued pursuant to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 which was filed on August 25, 2022 with, and declared effective on September 2, 2022 by, the Securities and Exchange Commission (File No. 333-267066, the
“Registration Statement”), and a related prospectus, as supplemented by a prospectus supplement. The Company will pay the Sales Agent a cash commission in an amount up to 3.0% of the gross proceeds from each sale of shares sold
pursuant to the Sales Agreement. To date, we have sold an aggregate of 394,381 shares for gross proceeds of $2,310,547 under the ATM facility.

Contingent Value Rights Payment

On November 8, 2024, the Company announced that it will distribute to the holders of its non-transferable CVRs a payment of $850,269, or $0.35 per CVR, which payment is expected to commence by November 15, 2024.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our interim dited cond. lidated fiy ial and related notes included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (““Quarterly Report”) and our
audited financial and notes ined in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the f‘scalyear ended December 31, 2023 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on April 1, 2024.

Forward-Looking Statements

This quarterly report and, from time to time, reports filed with the SEC, in press releases, and in other communications to sharcholders or the investing public, may contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements can be identified by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. Words such as “may,” “will,” “can,” “should,” “would,” “could,” “anticipate,”
“expect,” “plan,” “seek,” “believe,” “are confident that,” “look forward to,” “predict,” “estimate,” “potential,” “project,” “target,” “forecast,” “see,” “intend,” “design,” “strive,” “strategy,” “future,” “opportunity,” “assume,” “guide,”
“position,” “continue” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are based on current beliefs, expectations and assumptions that are subiect to significant risks, uncertainties and
changes in circumstances that could cause actual results to differ materially from such forward-looking statements. These risks, uncertainties and changes in circumstances include, but are not limited to:

if our shareholders sell, or indicate an intention to sell, substantial amounts of our stock in the public market, the trading price of our common stock could decline;

if we fail to design and implement and maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting, we may be subject to sanctions or investigations by regulatory authorities or lose investor confidence in the accuracy and
completeness of our financial reports;

if our common stock market price continues to be highly volatile, it may harm the value of the investment of our shareholders in our common stock;

if we issue additional common stock, it may materially dilute the ownership interests of our shareholders;

anti-takeover provisions in our organizational documents and agreements may discourage or prevent a change in control, even if a sale of Pineapple could be beneficial to our shareholders;

our board of directors may establish shares of preferred stock in series and fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each series which may be senior to or on parity with our common stock, which may reduce
its value;

our growth strategy depends on the continued origination of solar installation agreements;

if we fail to manage our operations and growth effectively, we may be unable to execute our business plan, maintain high levels of customer service or adequately address competitive challenges;

we need to raise additional capital to fund our operations and repay our obligations, which funding may not be available on favorable terms or at all and may lead to substantial dilution to our existing shareholders. Further, there is
substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern, which conditions may adversely affect our stock price and our ability to raise capital;

our common stock may be delisted from the Nasdaq Capital Market if we cannot maintain compliance with the applicable listing standards;

we may face claims for monetary damages, penalties, and other significant items pursuant to existing contractual arrangements, as well as litigation or threatened litigations, which, if material, may strain our cashflow and operations,
as well as take away substantial time and attention from management that is necessary to for business operations and potential growth opportunities;

we depend on a limited number of suppliers of solar energy system components and technologies to adequately meet demand for our solar energy systems;

increases in the cost of our solar energy systems due to tariffs and other trade restrictions imposed by the U.S. government could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations;

our operating results and our ability to grow may fluctuate from quarter to quarter and year to year, which could make our future performance difficult to predict and could cause our operating results for a particular period to fall
below expectations.
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we may have difficulty integrating the businesses from the SUNation transaction with our existing operations or otherwise obtaining the strategic benefits of the acquisition;

if we are unable to make acquisitions on economically acceptable terms, our future growth would be limited, and any acquisitions we may make could reduce, rather than increase, our cash flows;

product liability and property damage claims against us or accidents could result in adverse publicity and potentially significant monetary damages;

we will not be able to insure against all potential risks and we may become subject to higher insurance premiums;

damage to our brand and reputation or change or loss of use of our brand could harm our business and results of operations;

the loss of one or more members of our senior management or key employees may adversely affect our ability to implement our strategy;

our inability to protect our intellectual property could adversely affect our business. We may also be subject to intellectual property rights claims by third parties, which are extremely costly to defend, could require us to pay
significant damages and could limit our ability to use certain technologies;

we may be subject to interruptions or failures in our information technology systems;

our information technology systems may be exposed to various cybersecurity risks and other disruptions that could impair our ability to operate, adversely affect our business, and damage our brand and reputation;

our failure to hire and retain a sufficient number of key employees, such as installers and electricians, would constrain our growth and our ability to timely complete projects;

our business is concentrated in certain markets, putting us at risk of region-specific disruptions;

if sufficient additional demand for residential solar energy systems does not develop or takes longer to develop than we anticipate, our ability to originate solar installation agreements may decrease;

our business prospects are dependent in part on a continuing decline in the cost of solar energy system components and our business may be adversely affected to the extent the cost of these components stabilize or increase in the
future;

we face competition from centralized electric utilities, retail electric providers, independent power producers and renewable energy companies;

developments in technology or improvements in distributed solar energy generation and related technologies or components may materially adversely affect demand for our offerings;

a material reduction in the retail price of electricity charged by electric utilities or other retail electricity providers could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations;

terrorist or cyberattacks against centralized utilities could adversely affect our business;

climate change may have long-term impacts on our business, industry, and the global economy;

increases in the cost of our solar energy systems due to tariffs imposed by the U.S. government could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations;

we are not currently regulated as an electric public utility under applicable law, but may be subject to regulation as an electric utility in the future;

electric utility policies and regulations, including those affecting electric rates, may present regulatory and economic barriers to the purchase and use of solar energy systems that may significantly reduce demand for our solar energy
systems and adversely impact our ability to originate new solar installation agreements;

we rely on net metering and related policies to sell solar systems to our customers in most of our current markets, and changes to policies governing net metering may significantly reduce demand for electricity from residential solar
energy systems and thus for our installation services;

a customer’s decision to procure installation services from us depends in part on the availability of rebates, tax credits and other financial incentives. The expiration, elimination or reduction of these rebates, credits or incentives or our
ability to monetize them could adversely impact our business;

technical and regulatory limitations regarding the interconnection of solar energy systems to the electrical grid may significantly delay interconnections and customer in-service dates, harming our growth rate and customer
satisfaction; and

compliance with occupational safety and health requirements and best practices can be costly, and noncompliance with such requirements may result in potentially significant monetary penalties, operational delays and adverse

publicity.
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Other risks and uncertainties are discussed more fully under the caption “Risk Factors™ in our filings with the SEC, including in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors™ of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 and
in Part II, Ttem 1A. “Risk Factors” of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. To the extent permitted by applicable law, we expressly disclaim any intent or
obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.

Overview

Pineapple Energy Inc. (“Pineapple,” “PEGY,” “we,” “our”, “us” or the “Company”) was originally organized as a Minnesota corporation in 1969.
Pineapple’s vision is to power the energy transition through grass-roots growth of solar electricity paired with battery storage. The Company is a domestic operator and consolidator of residential and commercial solar, battery storage, and grid
services solutions. Our strategy is focused on acquiring, integrating, and growing leading local and regional solar, storage, and energy services companies nationwide.

Our current business units, Hawaii Energy Connection, LLC (“HEC™), and New York-based subsidiaries, the SUNation entities (collectively, “SUNation™). are engaged in the design, installation, and maintenance of solar energy systems
across residential, commercial, and municipal sectors. Our team specializes in providing tailored solar solutions that meet the specific energy needs of each client, ensuring both efficiency and sustainability. In addition to our core solar
services, we also offer energy storage systems to optimize energy use and increase reliability. Our New York business unit further integrates a broader range of services, including residential roofing solutions, to ensure seamless solar
installations and long-term durability. Additionally, we provide community solar services that allow groups of individuals, businesses, or organizations to share the benefits of a single solar array, making renewable energy accessible to more
people in the community.

Our comprehensive approach enables us to effectively meet the diverse needs of our customers, ensuring that we play a pivotal role in advancing the clean energy transition across various sectors. The depth, versatility, and proven track record
of our business units form the foundation of our success. This strong combination of experience, innovation, and a commitment to quality empowers us to deliver exceptional value, positioning us as a reliable leader in the solar and energy
services industry.

Through its E-Gear business, Pineapple also develops, manufactures, and sells patented edge-of-grid energy management software and hardware technology, such as energy management control devices. These products allow homeowners to
get the most out of their installed photovoltaic solar energy systems and utility grid support benefits. Our primary customers for this technology are energy services companies and other utilities.

On June 30, 2023, the Company divested its legacy operations and operating assets through the sale of substantially all of the assets of its JDL Technologies, Inc. (“JDL”) and Ecessa Corporation (“Ecessa”) businesses. As a result, unless
otherwise noted, all information in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q related to the JDL and Ecessa businesses are discussed and presented as discontinued operations and the Company reports its remaining business operations as continuing
operations.

For a more complete description of the Company, see Note 1, Nature of Operations, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report.

Reverse Stock Splits

June 2024 Reverse Stock Split

On January 3, 2024, the Company’s shareholders approved a reverse stock split of the Company’s common stock at a ratio within a range of 1-for-2 and 1-for-15 and granted the Company’s board of directors the discretion to determine the
timing and ratio of the split within such range.
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On May 28, 2024, the Company’s board of directors determined to effect the reverse stock split of the common stock at a 1-for-15 ratio (the “June Reverse Stock Split™) and approved an amendment (“June Reverse Stock Split Amendment™)
to the Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company to effect the June Reverse Stock Split.

Effective June 12, 2024, the Company amended its Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to implement the June Reverse Stock Split. The Company's common stock began trading on a split-adjusted basis when the market
opened on June 12, 2024 (the "June Effective Date").

As a result of the June Reverse Stock Split, at 12:01 a.m. Central Time on the June Effective Date, every 15 shares of common stock then issued and outstanding automatically were combined into one share of common stock, with no change
in par value per share. No fractional shares were outstanding following the June Reverse Stock Split, and any fractional shares that would have resulted from the June Reverse Stock Split were settled in cash. The number of shares of common
stock outstanding was reduced from 108,546,773 to 7,235,731, with 720.901 fractional shares paid out in cash totaling $1,132. The total number of shares authorized for issuance was reduced to 7,500,000 in proportion to the June Reverse
Stock Split ratio.

October 2024 Reverse Stock Split

On July 19, 2024, the Company’s shareholders approved a reverse stock split of the Company’s common stock at a ratio within a range of 1-for-2 and 1-for-200 and granted the Company’s board of directors the discretion to determine the
timing and ratio of the split within such range.

On October 1, 2024, the Company’s board of directors determined to effect the reverse stock split of the common stock at a 1-for-50 ratio (the “October Reverse Stock Split”) and approved an amendment (“October Reverse Stock Split
Amendment”) to the Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company to effect the October Reverse Stock Split.

Effective October 17, 2024, the Company amended its Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to implement the October Reverse Stock Split. The Company's common stock began trading on a split-adjusted basis when the
market opened on October 17, 2024 (the "October Effective Date").

As aresult of the October Reverse Stock Split, at 12:01 a.m. Central Time on the October Effective Date, every 50 shares of common stock then issued and outstanding automatically were combined into one share of common stock, with no
change in par value per share. No fractional shares were outstanding following the Reverse Stock Split, and any fractional shares that would have resulted from the October Reverse Stock Split were settled in cash. The number of shares of
common stock outstanding was reduced from 67,260,696 to 1,344,841, with 372.92 fractional shares payable in cash totaling $1,891. The total number of shares authorized for issuance was reduced from 133,333,333 to 2,666,667 in
proportion to the October Reverse Stock Split ratio.

Effective as of the same time as the June 2024 Reverse Stock Split and October 2024 Reverse Stock Split (collectively known as the “Reverse Stock Splits”), the number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the Company's
equity compensation plans were automatically reduced in proportion to the Reverse Stock Splits ratio. Upon effectiveness, the Reverse Stock Splits also resulted in reductions in the number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise
or vesting of equity awards in proportion to the Reverse Stock Splits ratios and caused a proportionate increase in exercise price or share-based performance criteria, if any, applicable to such awards.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2024 and 2023

Consolidated sales decreased $3,570,311, or 19.5% to $14,718,386 in the third quarter of 2024 from $18,288,697 in the third quarter of 2023. Sales in the third quarter of 2024 and 2023 by type were as follows:
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Revenue by Type
Three Months Ended September 30

2024 2023
Residential contracts $ 10,600,999 $ 15,300,411
Commercial contracts 3,618,023 2,201,888
Service revenue 499,364 764,063
Software revenue 22,335
Other = —
$ 14,718,386 $ 18,288,697

Residential contract sales decreased $4,699,412, or 31%, due to a 22% reduction in residential kilowatts installed and also a decrease in average price per system installed as result of lower battery attachment rate. The residential market
within the solar industry is seeing an overall decline in installations due to higher interest rates. Commercial contract sales increased $1,416,135, or 64%, due to larger commercial projects that were pushed into the third quarter of 2024 with
lower projects in prior quarters of 2024 whereas the prior year had more consistent commercial projects throughout the year.

Consolidated gross profit decreased to $5,235,725 in the third quarter of 2024 as compared to gross profit of $7,032,458 in the third quarter of 2023 due primarily to the decrease in revenue during the quarter. Gross margin decreased slightly
to 36% during the third quarter of 2024 as compared to 38% in the third quarter of 2023 due primarily to certain fixed costs on lower revenue.

Consolidated operating expenses, which include selling, general and administrative expenses, amortization expense, and a fair value remeasurement gain (loss) of SUNation earnout consideration, decreased to $6,842,462 in the third quarter
0f 2024 as compared to $8,596,808 in the third quarter of 2023. Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $1,017,023, or 14%, to $6,133,087 in the third quarter of 2024 from $7,150,110 in the third quarter of 2023,
due primarily to a $555,765 decrease in stock compensation expense and overall decreased personnel expenses on lower headcount. Amortization expense decreased by $507,323 to $709,375 in the third quarter of 2024 as compared to
$1,216,698 in the same period of the prior year due to the completion of the amortization of certain intangible assets in late 2023. There was not a fair value remeasurement related to the SUNation acquisition earnout consideration in the third
quarter of 2024 compared to a loss of $230,000 in the same period of the prior year.

Consolidated other (expense) income decreased by $922,426 to expense of $1,691,363 in the third quarter of 2024 as compared to $768,937 in expense in the third quarter of 2023. The decrease was primarily related to a $1,435,845 fair value
remeasurement loss on the warrant liability, a $587,271 fair value remeasurement gain on the embedded derivative liability, a $199,785 decrease in gain on sale of assets, and a $225,871 decrease in fair value remeasurement loss on the
contingent value rights (“CVRs”).

Consolidated operating loss from continuing operations in the third quarter of 2024 was $1,606,737 as compared to $1,564,350 in the third quarter of 2023. Net loss from continuing operations attributable to shareholders in the third quarter of
2024 (after taking into effect $264,482 in deemed dividends) was $3,563,091, or $(11.77) per diluted share, compared to net loss from continuing operations of $2,329,053, or $(176.35) per diluted share, in the third quarter of 2023.

Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024 and 2023

Consolidated sales decreased $18,703,410, or 31.1% to $41,487,003 in the first nine months of 2024 from $60,190,413 in the first nine months of 2023. Sales in the first nine months of 2024 and 2023 by type were as follows:
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Revenue by Type

Nine Months Ended 30
2024 2023
Residential contracts $ 34,501,450 $ 48,635,741
Commercial contracts 5,107,418 8,789,930
Service revenue 1,878,135 2,429,433
Software revenue 323,815
Other — 11,494
$ 41,487,003 $ 60,190,413

Residential contract sales decreased $14,134,291, or 29%, due to a 17% reduction in residential kilowatts installed and also a decrease in average price per system installed as result of lower financing fees and lower battery attachment rate.
Overall the acceleration of projects in the last quarter of 2023 led to approval bottlenecks at the outset of 2024 which was further hampered by some supply chain disruption from a change in suppliers. The residential market within the solar
industry is seeing an overall decline in installations due to higher interest rates. Commercial contract sales decreased $3,682,512, or 42%, due primarily to a delay in the start of commercial pipeline projects into the second half of 2024.

Consolidated gross profit decreased to $14,833,527 in the first nine months of 2024 as compared to gross profit of $22,175,708 in the first nine months of 2023 due primarily to the decrease in revenue during the quarter. Gross margin
decreased slightly to 36% during the first nine months of 2024 from 37% during the first nine months of 2023 due primarily to certain fixed costs on lower revenue.

Consolidated operating expenses, which include selling, general and administrative expenses, amortization expense, and a fair value remeasurement gain of SUNation earnout consideration, decreased to $20,649,162 in the first nine months of
2024 as compared to $27,304,903 in the first nine months of 2023. Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $3,123,771, or 14%, to $19,321,037 in the first nine months of 2024 from $22,444,808 in the first nine
months of 2023, due primarily to a $983,024 decrease in stock compensation expense, decreased sales and marketing expense, including commissions, on lower revenue in the period, and decreased personnel expenses on lower headcount.
Amortization expense decreased by $1,571,970 to $2,128,125 in the first nine months of 2024 as compared to $3,700,095 in the same period of the prior year due to the completion of the amortization of certain intangible assets in late 2023.
The fair value remeasurement related to the SUNation acquisition earnout consideration in the first nine months of 2024 was a gain of $800,000 compared to a loss of $1,160,000 in the same period of the prior year.

Consolidated other (expense) income decreased by $3,079,565 to expense of $3,214,300 in the first nine months of 2024 as compared to $134,735 in expense in the first nine months of 2023. The decrease was primarily related to a $444,833
increase in interest and accretion expense, a $468,329 fair value remeasurement loss on the embedded derivative liability, a $673,464 decrease in fair value remeasurement gain on the CVRs, a $974,823 fair value remeasurement loss on the
warrant liability, and a $437,938 decrease in gain on sale of assets.

Consolidated operating loss from continuing operations in the first nine months of 2024 was $5,815,635 as compared to $5,129,195 in the first nine months of 2023. Net loss from continuing operations attributable to shareholders in the first
nine months of 2024 (after taking into effect $11,587,121 in deemed dividends) was $20,617,094, or $(128.25) per diluted share, compared to net loss from continuing operations of $5,262,534, or $(395.75) per diluted share, in the first nine
months of 2023.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2024, the Company had $2,162,086 in cash, restricted cash and cash equivalents. Of this amount, $1,240,882 was invested in short-term money market funds that are not considered to be bank deposits and are not insured
or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or other government agency. These money market funds seek to preserve the value of the investment at $1.00 per share; however, it is possible to lose money investing in these
funds. The remainder in cash and cash equivalents is operating cash.
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Of the amounts of cash, restricted cash and cash equivalents on the balance sheet at September 30, 2024, $1,099,763 consisted of funds that can only be used to support the legacy CSI business, will be distributed to CVR holders and cannot
be used to support the working capital needs of the Pineapple Energy business.

The Company had working capital deficit of $(13,243,267) at September 30, 2024, consisting of current assets of $11,682,522 and current liabilities of $24,925,789 compared to working capital deficit of $(6,594,834) at December 31, 2023.

Cash used in operating activities was $4,393,846 in the first nine months of 2024 as compared to $825,114 in the same period of 2023. Significant working capital changes in the nine months ended September 30, 2024 included a decrease of
accounts receivable of $803,047, a decrease in inventories of $893,281, an increase in accounts payable of $570,844, a decrease in accrued compensation and benefits for $510,484, and an increase in other assets, primarily due to an increase
in costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings as we are completing commercial projects in the quarter.

Net cash used in investing activities was $23,631 in the first nine months of 2024 compared to $3,608,534 provided by investing activities in the same period of 2023. Net cash provided in the 2023 period was the result of proceeds from the
sale of investments, proceeds from the sale of JDL and Ecessa assets included within discontinued operations, partially offset by capital expenditures.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1,183,220 in the first nine months of 2024 compared to $2,446,496 used in the same period of 2023. Net cash provided by financing activities in the first nine months of 2024 was due to
$1,000,000 in proceeds from the issuance of common stock under a registered direct offering and $1,604,000 in borrowings from Conduit Capital US Holdings LLC (“Conduit”) and MBB Energy, LLC (“MBB”), partially offset by payments
against loans payable. Net cash used in financing activities in the nine months of 2023 was due to $3,036,676 in CVR distribution payments, $5,000,000 in payments against the SUNation Short-Term Note and $1,500,000 in payments against
the Hercules Capital, Inc. (“Hercules™) term loan, partially offset by $7,500,000 in borrowings from Decathlon Specialty Finance, LLC (“Decathlon™).

In connection with the SUNation acquisition, on November 9, 2022, the Company issued a $5,000,000 Short-Term Limited Recourse Secured Promissory Note (the “Short-Term Note™) and a $5,486,000 Long-Term Promissory Note (the
“Long-Term Note”). The Short-Term Note was secured as described below and was scheduled to mature on August 9, 2023. It carried an annual interest rate of 4% until the three-month anniversary of issuance, 8% thereafter until the six-
month anniversary of issuance, then 12% thereafter until the Short-Term Note is paid in full. The Short-Term Note was paid in full in conjunction with the Decathlon loan. The Long-Term Note is unsecured and matures on November 9, 2025.
It carries an annual interest rate of 4% until the first anniversary of issuance, then 8% thereafter until the Long-Term Note is paid in full. The Company was required to make a principal payment of $2.74 million on the second anniversary of
the Long-Term Note. The Long-Term Note may be prepaid at our option at any time without penalty.

Based on the Company’s current financial position, the Company did not have sufficient cash to make the first SUNation earnout payment, which was due on May 6, 2024, or the first principal payment of the Long-Term Note that was due on
November 9, 2024, a factor which raises substantial doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. Notwithstanding the Company’s ability to make such payments, the Company is not
permitted to make any earnout payments under the SUNation Transaction Agreement or any payments under the Long-Term Note unless Decathlon has provided prior written consent to such payment pursuant to the Company’s Revenue
Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2023, by and among the Company, Decathlon, and the other parties thereto (the “Loan Agreement™). Pursuant to that certain subordination letter dated May 31, 2023, each holder of the Long-
Term Note has subordinated all payments under the Long-Term Note to the obligations owed to Decathlon under the Loan Agreement (the “Decathlon Obligations™) and has agreed that, until the Decathlon Obligations have been paid in full,
any payment under the Long-Term Note is subject to Decathlon’s prior written consent. Therefore, if Decathlon does not consent to the first principal payment of the Long-Term Note, such non-payment will not result in a default under the
Long-Term Note. Failure to make earnout payments under the SUNation Transaction Agreement, which are prohibited under the Loan Agreement, could result in a breach under the SUNation Transaction Agreement.

As a result, the Company requires additional funding and seeks to raise capital through sources that may include public or private equity offerings, debt financings and/or strategic alliances. On October 21, 2024, the Company entered into an
At
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the Market (“ATM”) Offering Agreement to sell shares up to $10,000,000. While the Company has raised over $2 million to date, it is not sufficient to be able to cover all of the Company’s outstanding obligations. Additional funding may
not be available on terms acceptable to the Company, or at all. If the Company is unable to raise additional funds, it would have a negative impact on the Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition. To the extent that
additional funds are raised through the sale of equity or securities convertible into or exercisable for equity securities, the issuance of securities will result in dilution to the Company’s shareholders.

Contingent Value Rights and Impact on Cash

The Company issued CVRs prior to the Closing to CSI shareholders of record on the close of business on March 25, 2022. The CVR entitles the holder to a portion of the cash, cash equivalents, investments and net proceeds of any
divestiture, assignment, or other disposition of all legacy assets of CSI and/or its legacy subsidiaries, JDL and Ecessa, that are related to CSI’s pre-merger business, assets, and properties that occur during the 24-month period following the
Closing. The CVR liability as of September 30, 2024 was estimated at $1,212,263 and represented the estimated fair value as of that date of the legacy CSI assets to be distributed to CVR holders as of that date. This amount is recorded as a
current liability that includes the remaining restricted cash and cash equivalents, investments, along with the other tangible and intangible assets related to the legacy CSI business. The proceeds from CSI’s pre-merger business working capital
and related long-term assets and liabilities are not available to fund the working capital needs of the post-merger company.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”).
The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Generally, we base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions in accordance with GAAP that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates and such differences could be material to our financial position and results of operations. Critical accounting estimates are those that involve a significant level of estimation
uncertainty and have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on our financial condition and results of operations. For additional information, please see the discussion of our critical accounting estimates in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023. There have been no changes to our critical accounting estimates as described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, except as set forth below.

Convertible Preferred Stock and Warrants: In March 2022, the Company issued shares of Series A convertible preferred stock (the “Convertible Preferred Stock™) and PIPE Warrants to investors as part of a $32.0 million private investment
in public equity (“PIPE”) transaction. The proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Preferred Stock were allocated between the Convertible Preferred Stock and PIPE Warrants using a relative fair value method. The Company accounts
for the Convertible Preferred Stock and PIPE Warrants based on an assessment of the specific terms and applicable authoritative guidance in Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 480, “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity”, and ASC
815, “Derivatives and Hedging”. The Convertible Preferred Stock was originally reported as part of permanent equity and the PIPE Warrants were originally determined to be equity-classified. As discussed in Notes 10 and 11, the Convertible
Preferred Stock and PIPE Warrants were modified during the first quarter of 2024, which resulted in the Company not having sufficient authorized and unissued shares to settle the conversion and exercise to common stock and the
reclassification of the Convertible Preferred Stock to mezzanine equity and the PIPE Warrants to a liability. During the third quarter of 2024, the Company received the appropriate shareholder approval on an increase in authorized shares and
the Convertible Preferred Stock and PIPE Warrants were reclassified to equity.

Embedded Derivative Liability: The Company’s Decathlon Fixed Loan includes a mandatory prepayment feature upon a contingent event that is considered an embedded derivative that requires bifurcation under ASC 815. The Company’s
Conduit and MBB loans include an acceleration of amounts outstanding under the loan agreements upon an event of default or if the Company consummates one or more equity offerings meeting certain criteria that is considered an
embedded derivative that requires bifurcation. Under ASC 815, the embedded derivative is bifurcated and recorded at fair value at inception and each subsequent reporting period. However, based on management’s estimates of the likelihood
of certain events, the embedded derivative liability related to the Decathlon Fixed Loan had no fair value at issuance and at
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the end of each of the reporting periods ended prior to June 30, 2024. As of June 30, 2024, the fair value of this embedded derivative was ascribed value. See further discussion in Note 7. The Conduit and MBB embedded derivatives were
ascribed a fair value at issuance and were fair valued at September 30, 2024 with the change in fair value recorded within Other (expense) income within the condensed consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Recently issued accounting standards and their estimated effect on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements are also described in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this report.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Not applicable.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that are designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to
the Company’s management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management, with the participation of the Company’s Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-
15(e) under the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, management concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective because of material weaknesses in
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting described below.

Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as that term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “Framework”). Based on that evaluation, management concluded that the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2023, due to material weaknesses in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness is defined as a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

We identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting due to our limited accounting and finance resources, which resulted in inappropriate preparation, review and maintenance of documentation and information
that is critical to the design and consistent execution of internal controls. These material weaknesses could result in a misstatement of account balances or disclosures that would result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim
financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.

Remediation Plan
To address the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, the Company is in the process of formalizing a remediation plan that will address our limited resources and also includes implementing a new Enterprise

Resource Planning (“ERP”) system which provides the necessary control environment to help mitigate the potential for
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misstatements in financial reporting, including but not limited to segregation of duties, user permission and access controls, and automated processes. While we believe that these efforts will improve our internal control over financial
reporting, the design and implementation of our remediation is ongoing and will require validation and testing of the design and operating effectiveness of our internal controls over a sustained period of time. We will not be able to conclude
whether the steps we are taking will fully remediate the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting until we have completed our remediation efforts and subsequent evaluation of their effectiveness. Until these
weaknesses are remediated, we plan to continue to perform additional analyses and other procedures to ensure that our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Inherent Limitations on Control Systems

Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, will be or have been detected. These inherent limitations include the
realities that judgments in decision making can by faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more
people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in
achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, that occurred during the three months ended September 30, 2024, that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. As reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, we concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
not effective.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Not Applicable.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the “Form
10-K”), which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results.

There have been no material changes in the risk factors disclosed in the Form 10-K, except the following risk factors are hereby amended and restated as reflected below:

Our failure to maintain compliance with the Nasdaq Stock Market’s continued listing requirements could result in the delisting of our common stock, which could negatively affect the market price of our common stock, our liquidity
and our ability to raise capital.

Our common stock is currently listed on The Nasdaq Capital Market. In order to maintain this listing, we must satisfy minimum financial and other requirements. On October 1, 2024, we received a letter (the “Minimum Bid Price Deficiency
Letter”) from the Listing Qualifications Department (the “Staff”) of The Nasdaq Stock Market (“Nasdaq”) notifying the Company that, for the 30 consecutive business day period from August 16 through September 30, 2024, the Company’s
common stock had not maintained a minimum closing bid price of $1.00 per share (the “Minimum Bid Price Requirement”) required for continued listing on The Nasdaq Capital Market pursuant to Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(a)(2).
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Pursuant to the previously disclosed Nasdaq hearing panel decision, dated July 18, 2024, the Company was subject to a mandatory panel monitor (“Panel”) under Nasdaq’s listing Rule 5815(d)(4)(B) for a period of one year. Accordingly, due
to the most recent minimum bid price deficiency, the Staff notified the Company that it will not be afforded a 180-day cure period (as we had received for our prior minimum bid price deficiency). Instead, the Company was offered an
opportunity to appeal any deficiency related to a delisting determination to Nasdaq by or before October 8, 2024, which appeal we timely filed on October 8, 2024.

The hearing request automatically stayed any suspension or delisting action pending the hearing and the expiration of any additional extension period if granted by the Panel following the hearing. To this end, the stockholders of the Company
had approved a share consolidation on July 19, 2024, pursuant to which the board of directors of the Company has effectuated a 1-50 reverse stock split on October 17, 2024 in relevant part to resolve the above noted Nasdaq listing
compliance deficiency prior to such hearing date.

On November 8, 2024, the Company received notice from the Nasdaq Listing Qualifications staff that the Company has regained compliance with the bid price requirement in Listing Rule 5550(a)(2) and that the Company is, therefore, in
compliance with the Nasdaq Capital Market’s listing requirements. Consequently, the scheduled hearing before the Hearings Panel on November 21, 2024, was deemed moot and has been cancelled, and the Company’s securities will continue
to be listed and traded on The Nasdaq Stock Market.

Notwithstanding the successful outcome of the above-described event, the perception among investors that we are at a heightened risk of delisting could negatively affect the market price and trading volume of our common stock. If our
common stock is delisted from Nasdag, the delisting could: substantially decrease trading in our common stock; adversely affect the market liquidity of our common stock as a result of the loss of market efficiencies associated with Nasdaq
and the loss of federal preemption of state securities laws; adversely affect our ability to issue additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future on acceptable terms, if at all; result in the potential loss of confidence by investors,
suppliers, partners and employees and fewer business development opportunities; and result in limited analyst interest. Additionally, the market price of our common stock may decline further, and shareholders may lose some or all of their
investment.

Shareholders may experience future dilution as a result of future equity offerings and other issuances of our Common Stock or other securities, including securities that are exercisable for or convertible into Common Stock. In
addition, this offering and future equity offerings and other issuances of our Common Stock or other securities may adversely affect our Common Stock price.

In order to raise additional capital, we may in the future offer additional shares of our Common Stock or other securities convertible into or exchangeable for our Common Stock at prices that may not be the same as the price per share in this
offering. We may not be able to sell shares or other securities in any other offering at a price per share that is equal to or greater than the price per share paid by investors in this offering, and investors purchasing shares or other securities in
the future could have rights superior to existing stockholders. The price per share at which we sell additional shares of our Common Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock in future transactions may be higher or lower than the
price per share at this time. You will incur dilution upon exercise of any outstanding stock options, warrants or upon the issuance of shares of Common Stock under our stock incentive programs. In addition, the sale of shares in any current or
future sales of a substantial number of shares of our Common Stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales may occur, could adversely affect the price of our Common Stock. We cannot predict the effect, if any, that market
sales of those shares of Common Stock or the availability of those shares of Common Stock for sale will have on the market price of our Common Stock.

Changes in our business strategy or restructuring of our businesses may increase our costs or otherwise affect our businesses.

We continually review our operations with a view toward reducing our cost structure, including, but not limited to, reducing our labor cost-to-revenue ratio, improving process and system efficiencies and increasing our revenues and operating
margins. Despite these efforts, we have needed and may continue to need to adjust our business strategies to meet these changes, or we may otherwise find it necessary to restructure our operations or particular businesses or assets. When
these changes or events occur, we may incur costs to change our business strategy and may need to write down the
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value of assets or sell certain assets. Additionally, any of these events could result in disruptions or adversely impact our relationships with our workforce, suppliers and customers. In any of these events our costs may increase, and we may
have significant charges or losses associated with the write-down or divestiture of assets and our business may be materially and adversely affected.

We may not fully realize the anticipated benefits from our restructuring efforts.

In regard to our realigned strategy and exploration of strategic alternatives, we may not achieve the expected benefits of such activities. Our ability to achieve the anticipated cost savings and other benefits from our restructuring, or other
efforts within expected time frames is subject to many estimates and assumptions, and may vary materially based on factors such as market conditions and the effect of our efforts on our workforce. These estimates and assumptions are subject
to significant economic, competitive and other uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. There can be no assurance that we will fully realize the anticipated positive impacts to our operations, liquidity or future financial results
from our current or future efforts. If our estimates and assumptions are incorrect or if other unforeseen events occur, we may not achieve the cost savings expected from such strategic alternative efforts, and our business and results of
operations could be adversely affected.
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existing indebtedness in the near future. Failure to do so could adversely affect our ability to continue or successfully grow our operations.

If capital is not available or we are not able to agree on reasonable terms with our lenders or creditors, we may then need to scale back or postpone our organic growth plans, reduce expenses, and/or curtail future acquisition plans to manage
our liquidity and capital resources. From time to time, we receive claims for significant monetary damages, penalties, or seeking additional securities. Such claims, if material, and if accurate, can place significant pressure on our financials,
cashflow, operations and place a strain on management’s time and focus, each of which could result in a material adverse event in relation to our operations and future prospects. Additionally, as a result of certain prior securities offerings
involving convertible or exercisable securities containing anti-dilution provisions that provided for significant per share price reset features, causing more shares to be issued than initially anticipated, we have faced periods of time where we
were ultimately required to seek shareholder approval to increase our authorized share capital, in large measure to satisfy the conversion, exercise, exchange or delivery of such shares, which is a time consuming and costly approval processes.
While we have ultimately satisfied our delivery obligations, including the issuance of shares under these securities, failing to satisfy or timely satisfy such contractual obligations could lead to material financial claims, and if proven accurate,
could subject us to substantial financial penalties and damages, potentially materially impacting the Company’s financial stability, interrupt operations and cause reputational harm. For example, we have informally received a financial claim
alleging liquidated damages, which we have been investigating. If such preliminary claim is ultimately found accurate or any settlement be substantial, we may not be able timely pay, finance, refinance or otherwise extend or repay our past,
current or future obligations if and as they arise, which could materially impact our ability to continue to operate as a going concern.

We need to obtain sub ial additional fi i to provide working capital and growth capital. If financing is not available to us on acceptable terms when needed, our ability to continue to fund our operations and

grow our business would be materially adversely impacted.

Distributed solar power is a capital-intensive business that relies heavily on the availability of debt and equity financing sources to fund solar energy system purchase, design, engineering and other capital and operational expenditures. Our
future success depends in part on our ability to raise capital from third-party investors and commercial sources, such as banks and other lenders, on competitive terms to help finance the deployment of our solar energy systems. We seek to
minimize our cost of capital in order to improve profitability and maintain the price competitiveness of the electricity produced by the payments for and the cost of our solar energy systems. We rely on access to capital, including through
equity financing, convertible notes, revenue loans and other forms of debt facilities, asset-backed securities and loan-backed securities, to cover the costs related to bringing our solar energy systems in service.

To meet the capital and liquidity needs of our business, we will need to obtain additional debt or equity financing from current and new investors. We have limited cash resources with which to operate our business and we may have difficulty
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in accessing financing on a timely basis or at all. The contract terms in certain of our existing investment and securities documents contain various conditions, penalty and liquidated damages clauses. If we are not able to satisfy such
conditions due to events related to our business, a specific investment fund, developments in our industry, including tax or regulatory changes, or otherwise, and as a result, we are unable to draw on existing funding commitments or raise
capital through equity, equity derivative or debt instruments, we could experience a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Any delays in accessing financing could have an
adverse effect on our ability to pay our operational expenses, make capital expenditures, repay loans and fund other general corporate purposes. Further, our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in our business may be limited and
our vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic, industry, regulatory and competitive conditions may be increased.

If any of our current debt or equity investors decide not to invest in us in the future for any reason or decide to invest at levels inadequate to support our anticipated needs or materially change the terms under which they are willing to provide
future financing, we will need to identify new investors and financial institutions to provide financing and negotiate new financing terms. In addition, our ability to obtain additional financing through the asset-backed securities market, loan-
backed securities market or other secured debt markets is subject to our having sufficient assets eligible for securitization as well as our ability to obtain appropriate credit ratings. If we are unable to raise additional capital in a timely manner,
our ability to meet our capital needs and fund future growth and profitability may be limited.

Delays in obtaining financing could cause delays in expansion in existing markets or entering into new markets and hiring additional personnel. Any future delays in capital raising could similarly cause us to delay deployment of a substantial
number of solar energy systems for which we have signed solar service agreements with customers. Our future ability to obtain additional financing depends on banks’ and other financing sources’ continued confidence in our business model
and the renewable energy industry as a whole. It could also be impacted by the liquidity needs of such financing sources themselves. We face intense competition from a variety of other companies, technologies and financing structures for
such limited investment capital. If we are unable to continue to offer a competitive investment profile, we may lose access to these funds or they may only be available to us on terms less favorable than those received by our competitors. Any
inability to secure financing could lead us to cancel planned installations, impair our ability to accept new customers or increase our borrowing costs, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Litigation brought by third parties claiming breach of contract, contractual defaults or other claims for may be costly and time consuming.

Although we may, from time to time, be involved in litigation and government proceedings, as well as contractual financial claims arising in the course of business, we are not a party to any litigation or governmental or other proceeding that
we believe will have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations or liquidity. These claims have in the past, and may in the future, arise from a wide variety of business practices and initiatives, including current or
new product releases, significant business transactions, securities offerings, convertible notes, warrants, loans, warranty or product claims, employment practices, and regulation, among other matters. Adverse outcomes in some or all of these
claims may result in significant monetary damages or injunctive relief that could adversely affect our ability to conduct our business. Litigation threatened litigation and other claims are subject to inherent uncertainties and management’s
view of these matters may change in the future. A material adverse impact in our consolidated financial statements could occur for the period in which the effect of an unfavorable outcome becomes probable and reasonably estimable.

If we become involved in material litigation or a significant number of litigations, we may incur substantial expense defending these claims and the proceedings may divert the attention of management, even if we prevail. An adverse outcome
could have a material adverse impact on our business, including causing us to seek protection under the bankruptcy laws, forcing us to reduce or discontinue our operations entirely, subject us to significant liabilities, allow our compemors to
market competitive products without a license from us, prohibit us from marketing our products or require us to seek licenses from third parties that may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. If a judgment is entered
against us, and we are unable to satisfy the judgment, a plaintiff may attempt to levy on our assets. We may be forced to sell material assets to satisfy such judgment, which may, in turn, force us to reduce or discontinue our operations.
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Item 2. _Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

See Note 10 for a more complete description of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock and warrants exchange for Series C Preferred Stock. On September 9, 2024, the Company and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock and warrants
entered into a Securities Exchange Agreement, dated September 9, 2024, pursuant to which the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock and warrants to cancel and retire the Series A Preferred Stock and warrants in exchange for shares of
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not Applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not Applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

Trading Arrangements

During the three months ended September 30, 2024, none of our directors or officers (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) of the Exchange Act) adopted, modified, or terminated any contract, instruction or written plan for the purchase or sale of our
securities that was intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) of the Exchange Act or any non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement (as defined in Item 408(c) of Regulation S-K).

Item 6. Exhibits

The following exhibits are included herewith:

3.1 Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, dated January 30, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 5, 2024),
32 Articles of Amendment of Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, effective as of June 12, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

June 17, 2024)

Bk

Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, dated July 24, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 25, 2024)

34 Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation, dated October 17, 2024 (incorporated by, reference in Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 17, 2024)

35 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of Communications Systems, Inc. (n/k/a Pineapple Energy Inc.) filed on March 25, 2022 (included in
Exhibit 3.1)

3.6 Restated Bylaws of Pineapple Energy Inc., as amended (effective as of April 13, 2022) (incorporated by, reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 13, 2022)

37 Certificate of Designation of Series B Preferred Stock, dated May 14, 2024 (incorporated by reference in Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 17, 2024),

3.8 Statement of Cancellation of the Certificate of Designation of Series B Preferred Stock, effective as of August 14, 2024 (incorporated by reference in Exhibit 3.7 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 10-Q_
filed on August 19, 2024),

39 Certificate of Desi

3.10 Certificate of Correction to Certificate of Designation, dated September 23, 2024 (incorporated by reference in Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 23, 2024)
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/22701/000089710124000436/pegy240945_ex3-1.htm
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Form of Limited Waiver and Amendment (incorporated by, reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 22, 2024),

filed on July 26, 2024) T ctween Pineapple Energy Inc. and Condwit Capital L., Holdings LLC (incorporated by reterence fo Exhioit 10.1 to the Compan
Secured Credit Note, dated July 22, 2024, between Pineapple Energy Inc. and Conduit Capital U.S. Holdings LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
Iuly 26,2024)

July 26, 2024)

Secured Credit Agreement, dated July 22, 2024, between Pineapple Energy Inc. and MBB Energy, LLC (incorporated by, reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 26,
2024)

Secured Credit Note, dated July 22, 2024, between Pineapple Energy Inc. and MBB Energy, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 26, 2024)
Security Agreement, dated July 22, 2024, between Pineapple Energy Inc. and MBB Energy, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 26, 2024)

First Amendment to Revenue Loan and Security Agreement, dated July 22, 2024, by and among Pineapple Energy Inc., the Guarantors party thereto, and Decathlon Specialty Finance LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 26, 2024),

Amendment and Joinder to Subordination Agreement, dated July 22, 2024 among Pineapple Energy Inc., Decathlon Growth Credit, LLC, Hercules Capital, Inc., and MBB Energy, LLC and Conduit Capital U.S.
Holdings, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to th mpany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 26, 2024)

Consent and Amendment No. 3 to Loan and Security Agreement, dated July 22, 2024 by and among Pineapple Energy LLC, Pineapple Energy Inc. and each other person that has delivered a Joinder Agreement

Agreement o
Second Amended and Restated Convertible Secured Credit Note, dated September 23, 2024, between Pineapple Energy Inc. and Conduit Capital U.S. Holdings, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to

K filed on October 21, 2024)
Amendment to Secured Credit Note, dated November 1, 2024, between Pineapple Energy Inc. and MBB Energy, LLC
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Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Convertible Secured Credit Note; and to the Credit Agreement, dated November 1, 2024, between Pineapple Energy Inc. and Conduit Capital U.S. Holdings LLC

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 of the Exchange Act).

Inline XBRL Instance Document (the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document)
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereto duly authorized.

Pineapple Energy Inc.

By /s/ Scott Maskin

Scott Maskin
Date: November 14, 2024 Interim Chief Executive Officer

By /s/ Andrew Childs

Andrew Childs
Date: November 14, 2024 Interim Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 10.15
SECOND AMENDMENT TO REVENUE LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

This second amendment (this “Amendment”) to that certain Revenue Loan and Security Agreement dated June 1,
2023, as amended by the First Amendment executed on or about July 18, 2024
(as amended, the “Agreement”), by and among Pineapple Energy Inc. (the “Company”), the parties listed
under the heading “Guarantors” on the signature pages attached hereto (each, a “Guarantor,” collectively, the “Guarantors;”
each of Company and each Guarantor are referred to herein as a “Company Entity,” and together as the “Company
Entities”), and Decathlon Specialty Finance, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company is effective September 12, 2024 (the “Second Amendment Date”). Decathlon Specialty
Finance, LLC has assigned the Agreement to Decathlon Growth Credit, LLC (“Lender”). Unless otherwise defined herein, all
capitalized terms have the meanings given to them in the Agreement.

The Company has requested that Lender forbear and consent to the Company making the Monthly
Payment scheduled for September 15, 2024 at a later date. In connection with and as a material inducement to Lender to make
an accommodation with respect to such request, Company desires to make certain amendments to the Agreement as provided
herein.

The Company and the Lender hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendments.

1.1. Monthly Payment for September 2024. Notwithstanding Section 2.3(b) of the Agreement, the
Monthly ~ Payment due on  September 15, 2024 in the sum of  $190,000.00 (the
“September 2024 Payment”) shall instead be due on the earlier of (i) the closing of an equity raise resulting in gross
proceeds of at least $2,000,000, and (ii) October 15, 2024.

1.2. Schedule 10.3. In the event the September 2024 Payment is not received on or before September 30,
2024, Schedule 10.3 shall be amended and restated in the form attached hereto as Schedule 10.3 and shall become
effective on October 1, 2024.

2. Compliance with Agreement. Company represents that it is in full compliance with its
obligations under the Agreement. To the best of Lender’s knowledge, there is no event of default existing or continuing nor any
other event that has occurred which would be an event of default but for the passage of time under the Transaction Documents.

3. Transaction Costs. Pursuant to Section 12.7 of the Agreement and in connection with this Amendment,
the Company will reimburse Lender for all fees and expenses incurred by Lender
relating to this Amendment. Without limiting the foregoing, the Company will pay Lender $500 related to Lender’s fees and
expenses incurred in connection with this Amendment.

4. No Other Changes. In all other respects, the Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect.



The parties have executed this Amendment as of the Second Amendment Date.

COMPANY:

PINEAPPLE ENERGY, INC. (f/k/a PINEAPPLE HOLDINGS, INC.)

By: /s/ Scott Maskin
Scott Maskin, Interim CEO

LENDER:

DECATHLON GROWTH CREDIT, LLC

By: /s/ Wayne Cantwell
Wayne Cantwell, Managing Director

GUARANTORS:

PINEAPPLE ENERGY LLC

By: /s/ Scott Maskin
Scott Maskin, Interim CEO

SUNATION SOLAR SYSTEMS, INC.

By: /s/ Scott Maskin
Scott Maskin, Interim CEO

SUNATION COMMERCIAL, INC.

By: /s/ Scott Maskin
Scott Maskin, Interim CEO




SUNATION SERVICE, LLC

By: /s/ Scott Maskin

Scott Maskin, Interim CEO

SUNATION ROOFING, LLC

By: /s/ Scott Maskin

Scott Maskin, Interim CEO

SUNATION ENERGY, LLC

By: /s/ Scott Maskin

Scott Maskin, Interim CEO



SCHEDULE 10.3 MINIMUM INTEREST

The “Minimum Interest” means, subject to the application of Section 8.2, the amount shown below in the column headed
Minimum Interest opposite the applicable period during which the Payoff Date occurs:

Period During Which the Payoff Minimum Interest
Date Occurs

On or before 12 months after the 0.265 times the Advance
Effective Date

After 12 months and on or before 24 | 0.365 times the Advance
months after the Effective Date

After 24 months and on or before 36 | 0.515 times the Advance
months after the Effective Date

After 36 months after the Effective 0.615 times the Advance
Date




Exhibit 10.16
EXECUTION VERSION

CONSENT AND AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS CONSENT AND AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO LOAN AND SECURITY
AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is made and dated as of September 20, 2024 (the “Third Amendment
Date”) and is entered into by and among PINEAPPLE ENERGY LLC (“PE LLC”), a Delaware limited liability company, for
itself and on behalf of any Subsidiary, PINEAPPLE ENERGY INC. (PE Inc.”), a Minnesota corporation, for itself and on
behalf of any Subsidiary, and each other Person that has delivered a Joinder Agreement pursuant to Section 7.12 or otherwise
from time to time party hereto
(together with PE LLC and PE Inc., individually or collectively, as the context may require “Borrower”), and HERCULES
CAPITAL, INC., a Maryland corporation, in its capacity as Lender (“Lender”) and as administrative agent and collateral agent
for itself and the Lender (in such capacity, “Agent”).

RECITALS

A. PE LLC, PE Inc. and Lender are parties to that certain Loan and Security Agreement,
dated as of December 11, 2020 (as amended, modified, supplemented or restated and in effect from time to time, collectively,
the “Loan Agreement”);

B. Borrower has requested that the Lender and Agent consent to waive the payment of outstanding
principal due and payable on October 1, 2024 pursuant to Section 2.1(c) of the Loan Agreement (the “October 2024
Amortization Payment”); and

Lender and Agent are willing to consent to waive the October 2024 Amortization
Payment. and to modify and amend certain terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions
contained herein.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the Borrower, Agent and the Lender agree as follows:

1. Capitalized Terms. All capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in the Loan Agreement.

2. Consent to Waive Amortization Payment on October 1, 2024. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set
forth in the Loan Agreement and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, Agent and Lender hereby consent,
effective as of the date hereof and subject to the conditions precedent specified under Section 8 hereof, to waive the
October 2024 Amortization Payment. For the avoidance of doubt, Borrower shall (i) make payment of monthly interest due and
payable on October 1, 2024, and (ii)
resume making monthly payment of principal on November 1, 2024 in each case, pursuant to Section 2.1(c) of the Loan
Agreement.

3. Borrower’s Representations and Warranties. Borrower represents and warrants that:

(a) Immediately upon giving effect to this Amendment (i) the representations and warranties contained
in the Loan Documents are true, accurate and complete in all material respects as of the date hereof (except to the extent such
representations and warranties relate to an earlier date, in which case they are true and correct as of such date), and (ii) no
Event of Default has occurred and is continuing with respect to which Borrower has not been notified in writing by Lender.



Borrower has the corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Amendment and to
perform its obligations under the Loan Agreement, as amended by this Amendment.

(c) The articles of organization, limited liability company agreement or certificate of incorporation
(applicable), bylaws or operating agreement (as applicable) and other organizational documents of Borrower delivered to
Lender on the Closing Date or any other date prior to the Third

Amendment Date remain true, accurate and complete and have not been amended, supplemented or restated and are and
continue to be in full force and effect.

(d) The execution and delivery by Borrower of this Amendment and the performance
by Borrower of its obligations under the Loan Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, have been duly authorized by all
necessary corporate action on the part of Borrower.

(e) This Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by Borrower and is the binding obligation of
Borrower, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited
by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, liquidation, moratorium or other similar laws of general application and equitable
principles relating to or affecting creditors’ rights; and

As of the date hereof, it has no defenses against the obligations to pay any amounts
under the Obligations. Borrower acknowledges that Lender has acted in good faith and has conducted in a commercially
reasonable manner its relationships with Borrower in connection with this Amendment and in connection with the Loan
Documents.

4. Agent’s and Lender’s Representation and Warranty. Immediately upon giving effect to this Amendment, to
their actual knowledge, Agent and Lender represent and warrant that no Event of Default is existing or continuing nor has any
other event occurred and is continuing which would be an Event of Default but for the passage of time.

5. Integration. This Amendment and the Loan Agreement represent the entire agreement about this subject
matter and supersede prior negotiations or agreements. All prior agreements, understandings, representations, warranties, and
negotiations between the parties about the subject matter of the Loan Agreement merge into this Amendment and the Loan
Agreement.

6. Prior Agreement. The Loan Agreement is hereby ratified and reaffirmed and shall remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment is not a novation and the terms and conditions of this Amendment
shall be in addition to and supplemental to all terms and conditions set forth in the Loan Agreement. In the
event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Amendment and the Loan Agreement, the terms of this Amendment shall be
controlling, but the Loan Agreement shall not otherwise be affected or the rights therein impaired. The amendments in Section
3 above, are effective for the purposes set forth herein and shall be limited precisely as written and shall not be deemed to (a)
be a consent to any amendment, waiver or modification of any other term of the Loan Agreement, or (b) otherwise prejudice
any right or remedy which Lender or Agent may now have, or may have in the future under or in connection with the Loan
Agreement or any instrument or agreement referred to therein.

7. Governing_ Law. This Amendment shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in
accordance with, the laws of the State of California, excluding conflict of laws principles that would cause the application of
laws of any other jurisdiction.

8. Effectiveness. This Amendment shall become effective upon the satisfaction of all the following conditions
precedent:



(a) Representations _and  Warranties; No Event of Default. Immediately upon giving
effect to this Amendment (i) the representations and warranties contained in the Loan Documents are true,
accurate and complete in all material respects as of the date hereof (except to the extent such representations and warranties relate
to an earlier date, in which case they are true and correct as of such date), and (ii) no Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing with respect to which Borrower has not been notified in writing by Lender.

(b) This Amendment. Agent shall have received this Amendment, executed by Agent, Lender and Borrower.

() Receipt _of MBB/Conduit Loan  Proceeds. Borrower has  provided evidence
reasonably satisfactory to Agent that Borrower has received cash proceeds in an amount not less than
$300,000 in the aggregate from (i) MBB Energy, LLC (“MBB”) pursuant to Section 2.01(b) of the Secured Credit Agreement dated
July 22, 2024 by and  between PE Inc. and MBB, and (ii) Conduit  Capital U.S.
Holdings (“Conduit”) pursuant to Section 2.01(b) of the Secured Credit Agreement dated July 22, 2024 by and between PE Inc. and
Conduit. For the avoidance of doubt, such $300,000 amount as required in the previous sentence shall not include any loan
proceeds received from MBB or Conduit prior to September 13, 2024.

(d) Amendment to Decathlon Financing. Agent shall have received a duly executed amendment to the
Decathlon Financing to waive the payment of principal and interest due thereunder for the month of September 2024 in form and
substance reasonably satisfactory to Agent.

9. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, and by different parties hereto in
separate counterparts, each of which when so delivered shall be deemed an original, but all of which counterparts shall constitute
but one and the same instrument.

10. Binding_Effect. This Amendment shall inure to the benefit of the and be binding on the Borrower and its
permitted assigns (if any).

(SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower, Lender and Agent have duly executed and delivered this Consent and Amendment to
Loan and Security Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

Accepted in San Mateo, California:

BORROWER:

PINEAPPLE ENERGY LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Signature: /s/ Scott Maskin
Print Name: Scott Maskin
Title: Interim Chief Executive Officer

PINEAPPLE ENERGY INC.,
a Minnesota corporation

Signature: /s/ Scott Maskin
Print Name: Scott Maskin
Title: Interim Chief Executive Officer

AGENT:
HERCULES CAPITAL, INC.

Signature: /s/ Zhuo Huang

Print Name: Zhuo Huang

Title: Associate General Counsel
LENDER:

HERCULES CAPITAL, INC.

Signature: /s/ Zhuo Huang
Print Name: Zhuo Huang
Title: Associate General Counsel




Exhibit 10.19
AMENDMENT TO SECURED CREDIT NOTE

This Amendment is made on November 1, 2024, and is retroactive to July 22, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), between Pineapple Energy, Inc.
(“Borrower”) and MBB Energy, LLC (“Lender”). This Amendment amends the Secured Credit Note, dated July 22, 2024 between Borrower and Lender
(the “Credit Note”) as provided herein, and to the defined term of the Secured Credit Agreement set forth below. Capitalized terms used in this
Amendment shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Credit Note, other than as set forth below.

Definition: “Maturity Date”, as defined in the Secured Credit Agreement, shall mean the sooner to occur of (a) the first (1st) anniversary of the
Effective Date and (b) three business days after the consummation one or more Equity Offerings in which Borrower derives aggregate gross proceeds of
at least $4,400,000.

1. Loans

a. First Advance. Lender advanced the principal sum of Five Hundred Thousand ($500,000.00) Dollars to Borrower on July 22, 2024, in an
amount equal to such principal sum minus the Original Issue Discount.

b. Second Advance. On August 16, 2024, Lender advanced the additional principal sum of Five Hundred Thousand ($500,000.00) Dollars, in
an amount equal to such principal sum minus the Original Issue Discount.

c. Original Issue Discount. Notwithstanding any such deduction of the Original Issue Discount, Borrower is and shall remain liable to pay (a)
the full principal amount of all Loans, inclusive of the Original Issue Discount and without giving effect to such deduction, and (b) interest, which shall
accrue on the outstanding principal amount of such Loans, inclusive of the Original Issue Discount and without giving effect to such deduction from and
after the Maturity Date. All calculations of interest and fees in respect of the Loans shall be calculated on the basis of their full stated principal sum. For
the avoidance of doubt, the Original Issue Discount is and shall be deemed to be a part of the aggregate outstanding principal sum due under this Note.

2. Interest Rate. Each Loan shall bear interest on the unpaid principal amount thereof at an interest rate equal to Twenty Percent (20.0%) per annum;
provided that payment in full of the Repayment Amount, inclusive of the Original Issue Discount, on the Maturity Date satisfies the interest accrual on
the Loan from initial issuance to the Maturity Date. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the outstanding principal
amount of the Loans hereunder shall bear interest payable on demand at a rate of interest of five (5.0%) percent per annum in excess of the interest rate
otherwise then in effect or, if less, the maximum lawful rate of interest. Interest on each Loan shall be calculated on the basis year of 360 days and shall
be payable for the actual days elapsed. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary as set forth in Section 1.c. and this Section 2, in no event shall the
Original Issue Discount, together with interest payable under the Credit Note or such other documents related hereto and thereto, exceed an aggregate of
twenty [iercent on the then outstanding principal sum, except in the event of a default, which shall include an additional 5% on the then outstanding
principal sum.

3 Reaffirmation. Borrower agrees and re-affirms that the Credit Note and Secured Credit Agreement is and shall remain in full force and effect,
except as set forth in this Amendment.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties are executing this agreement on the Effective Date.

Pineapple Energy, Inc. MBB Energy, LLC
by: /s/ James R. Brennan by: /s/ Scott Maskin
James R. Brennan Scott Maskin

Chief Operating Officer Member




Exhibit 10.20
AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CONVERTIBLE SECURED CREDIT NOTE; and TO THE CREDIT
AGREEMENT

This Amendment is made on November 1, 2024, and is retroactive to July 22, 2024 (“Effective Date”), between Pineapple Energy, Inc.
(“Borrower”) and Conduit Capital U.S. Holdings LLC (“Lender”). This Amendment amends the Second Amended and Restated Convertible Secured
Credit Note, dated September 23, 2024 between Borrower and Lender (the “Credit Note™) as provided herein, and to the defined term of the Secured
Cregit ﬁ%reiement set forth below. Capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Credit Note, other than as
set torth below.

Definition: “Maturity Date”, as defined in the Secured Credit Agreement, shall mean the sooner to occur of (a) the first (1st) anniversary of the
Effective Date and (b) three business days after the consummation one or more Equity Offerings in which Borrower derives aggregate gross proceeds of
at least $4,400,000.

1. Loans

a. First Advance. Lender advanced the principal sum of Five Hundred Thousand ($500,000.00) Dollars to Borrower on July 24, 2024, in an
amount equal to such principal sum minus the Original Issue Discount.

b. Second Advance. On September 9, 2024, Lender advanced the additional principal sum of One Hundred Twenty Thousand ($120,000.00)
Dollars, in an amount equal to such principal sum minus the Original Issue Discount.

c. Third Advance. On September 23, 2024, Lender advanced the additional principal sum of Three Hundred Eighty Thousand ($380,000.00)
Dollars to Borrower in an amount equal to such principal sum minus the Original Issue Discount.

d. Original Issue Discount. Notwithstanding any such deduction of the Original Issue Discount, Borrower is and shall remain liable to pay (a)
the full principal amount of all Loans, inclusive of the Original Issue Discount and without giving effect to such deduction, and (b) interest, which shall
accrue on the outstanding principal amount of such Loans, inclusive of the Original Issue Discount and without giving effect to such deduction from and
after the Maturity Date. All calculations of interest and fees in respect of the Loans shall be calculated on the basis of their full stated principal sum. For
the avoidance of doubt, the Original Issue Discount is and shall be deemed to be a part of the aggregate outstanding principal sum due under this Note.

2. Interest Rate. Each Loan shall bear interest on the unpaid principal amount thereof at an interest rate equal to Twenty Percent (20.0%) per annum;
provided that payment in full of the Repayment Amount, inclusive of the Original Issue Discount, on the Maturity Date satisfies the interest accrual on
the Loan from initial issuance to the Maturity Date. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the outstanding principal
amount of the Loans hereunder shall bear interest payable on demand at a rate of interest of five (5.0%) percent per annum in excess of the interest rate
otherwise then in effect or, if less, the maximum lawful rate of interest. Interest on each Loan shall be calculated on the basis year of 360 days and shall
be payable for the actual days elapsed. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary as set forth in Section 1.d. and this Section 2, in no event shall the
Original Issue Discount, together with interest payable under the Credit Note or such other documents related hereto and thereto, exceed an aggregate of
twenty percent on the then outstanding principal sum, except in the event of a default, which shall include an additional 5% on the then outstanding
principal sum.

3. Reaffirmation. Borrower agrees and re-affirms that each of the Credit Note and the Secured Credit Agreement is and shall remain in full force
and effect, except as set forth in this Amendment.






IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties are executing this agreement on the Effective Date.

Pineapple Energy, Inc. Conduit Capital U.S. Holdings LLC
by: /s/James R. Brennan by: /s/ Robert J. Zulkoski
James R. Brennan Robert J. Zulkoski

Chief Operating Officer Sole Member




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Scott Maskin certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Pineapple Energy Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Scott Maskin
Scott Maskin
Date: November 14, 2024 Interim Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Andrew Childs, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Pineapple Energy Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Andrew Childs
Andrew Childs
Date: November 14, 2024 Interim Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, that:

(1) The accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Pineapple Energy Inc. (the “Company”) for the period ended June 30, 2024 (the
“Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the accompanying Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Scott Maskin
Scott Maskin
Date: November 14, 2024 Interim Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Andrew Childs
Andrew Childs
Date: November 14, 2024 Interim Chief Financial Officer




